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Acute Care
Community Care
• Breakfast Club
• Farm Safety Program
• Pre-School Health
• Personal Development
• Women’s Health
• Walking Groups
• Yoga
Children’s Services
• Facilitated Play Group
• Occasional Care
Dementia Care
Dietetics

Diabetes Education
District Nursing
• Hospital in the Home
• Palliative Care
• Post Acute Care
• Domicillary Midwifery
Health Promotion
Home Care Packages
Home Care Services
Occupational Therapy
Physiotherapy
• Strength and Balance

Classes
Podiatry (external providers)

Palliative Care
Rokewood Men’s Shed
Residential Aged Care 
Services
Respite
Social Support Groups 
including:
• Bus to the Hub
• Men’s Group
• Nester’s Group
Urgent Care
Volunteering

To access Hesse’s broad range of

services contact Administration:

Phone:    (03) 5267 1200

Mail:    8 Gosney Street

  Winchelsea VIC 3241

E-mail:    reception@hesse.vic.gov.au

Website: www.hesseruralhealth.org.au

Our Services Contact Us

WHO ARE WE?
Hesse Rural Health Service (Hesse) is a public hospital operating under the Health Services Act 1988 and 
relevant amendments, and is governed by a Board of Directors appointed by the Governor in Council by 
the recommendation of the Victorian State Minister for Health.

As an innovative rural health service, Hesse provides acute, aged and community based services across 
parts of the municipalities of Colac Otway, Golden Plains and the Surf Coast. Hesse partners with the 
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc., a not-for-profit entity and Commonwealth Residential 
Aged Care Service (RACS) provider, whose charter it is to plan, provide and develop appropriate services 
for the local community.

Our Annual Report is internally produced and designed, and reflects real stories provided by our staff, 
consumers and their families. The Report aims to inform Government, interested stakeholders and members 
of the public about the range and quality of our services and Hesse Rural Health’s financial performance 
over the year.

Hesse Rural Health acknowledges Victoria’s Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities and their rich 
culture. We pay respects to the Ancestors, Elders and Communities of the Kulin Nation and Eastern Maar 
Nation, the custodians of the land on which we deliver our health care services. We seek to ensure the 
facilities, environment and services we manage are welcoming and inclusive for all people.

H
C

Hospital

LEGEND

Community Health Services

Residen�al Aged Care

INCLUSIVNESS 
Welcoming everyone

INTEGRITY 
Accountable, 

transparent practice

EXCELLENCE 
Committed to being the 

best we can

CREATIVITY 
Leading into the future

PERSON 
CENTREDNESS 

Finding what’s important 
to the individual

VISION 
Caring for Rural Communities

MISSION 
Hesse is dedicated to 

providing and facilitating 
access to best practice health, 

aged and community based 
services that strive for rural 

wellbeing.

VALUES
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F ROM T HE 
CHAIR

Throughout the 2020-2021 reporting 
year the COVID-19 pandemic was still 
with us.  During this period Hesse Rural 
Health (Hesse) has continued to work 
with the State and Commonwealth 
governments, peak bodies, Barwon 
South West regional health service 
partners, incident management teams and 
various stakeholders to keep our valued 
residents, consumers, staff, volunteers 
and visitors safe. 

The words ‘agility’ and ‘communication’ 
come to mind when reflecting upon the 
impact of operational adjustments we 
needed to make in order to deliver 
the best of care and services. Staff, 
residents, their families and the Board, 
were able to accept change and work 
within limitations that have been imposed 
upon all health care environments 
and settings globally. Increasing the 
frequency of communication on changing 
performance requirements was key to 
informing all of their obligations and to 
seek further information if they needed.

As through 2020, the Board of 
Management have been kept 
informed by the Chair and the CEO 
of its obligations and the service’s 
requirements to maintain a safe 
environment during the COVID-19 
pandemic. Through the CEO, the Chair 
has reminded staff to consult their 
managers if they felt distressed or 
required assistance.

During the period, the Governor in 
Council appointed Ian Whiting and 
Traci Williams as directors for a two-
year term commencing July 2020. Mr 
Mikel Dean and Mr Peter Nemtsas were 

re-appointed as directors for a further 
three-year term commencing July 2021, 
and Mr Ben Maw and Dr Chris Edwards 
were also appointed for three-year 
terms commencing July 2021. Both Ben 
and Chris bring extensive clinical and 
operational expertise in the aged care 
sector.

Mr Max Arnott and Mr John Sutherland 
finished their terms as directors. Both 
contributed to the Finance, Resources 
and Audit, and the Buildings and 
Environment sub-committees during their 
tenure. The Board thank both Max and 
John for their professional approach 
and contributions to the health service.  
Ms Linda Wong resigned her position 
as director in February 2021 due to 
business reasons. We thank Linda for her 
contributions during her term.

During the reporting period, the Board 
sub-committees have been very active 
and herein have provided reports on 
their performance. Each of the sub-
committees comprise of Directors and 
some include Hospital Auxiliary and 
community members. Whilst there are 11 
directors, there are many volunteers and 
support staff that facilitate each meeting.  
I thank them all for their valued time and 
input.

I acknowledge the Buildings and 
Environment, and the Marketing and 
Fundraising sub-committees whom have 
been very active this year planning asset 
upgrades and developing fundraising 
activities.

In my previous report the Board was 
revising its strategic plan. The Board 

has progressed throughout this period 
reviewing our strategic objectives, as 
well, our mission, values, risks, board 
education, each sub-committee’s terms 
of reference and service delivery 
opportunities from developing strategic 
partnerships with other health services to 
address the various health need demands 
from the growth in population within our 
region, as well, increased opportunities 
to provide services to the home from 
Winchelsea and Bannockburn enabled 
by increased ‘take-up’ of Home Care 
Packages in the region.  

Whilst this process has been disrupted 
several times due to COVID-19 
restrictions, we will soon be in a position 
to formalise the next five year strategic 
plan.  

I’d like to acknowledge the wonderful 
contributions from Peter Birkett and 
Andrea Dunlop who have helped build 
Hesse Rural Health to its highly regarded 
position in the aged care sector. As 
well, Brodie Lambert who worked within 
the Executive Team in different roles 
including as Business Manager and 
supporting both Peter and Andrea. All 
three left Hesse during the 2020/2021 
period.

This financial year we achieved 
a favourable operating result of 
$106,013. Occupancy in residential 
aged care averaged in excess of 97% 
and community services met activity 
targets when adjusted for pandemic 
considerations. This included delivering 
Commonwealth Home Support Services 
taken over from the Surf Coast Shire last 
year.



During 2021 the Board finalised the 
purchase of the “ADASS” building at 53 
Hesse Street, and later the Scout Hall 
at 4 Gosney Street. Both assets have 
been on the Board’s radar for several 
years and through the support of the 
Surf Coast Shire, Scouts Australia, three 
generous bequests and a considerable 
donation from the Hospital Auxiliary 
both acquisitions were completed.  
Acquiring 53 Hesse Street allows Hesse 
to continue providing health services 
direct to the public and to focus on 
strategic development of the site.  
Acquiring the Scout Hall finalises the 
Boards’ strategy to own all land areas 
in the precinct, again for strategic 
development of the site.

Sadly, early in the morning on 9th 
November, 2020 the Auxiliary 
Opportunity Shop (Op Shop) was 
destroyed by fire.  This event shocked 
the entire community. Whilst the entire 
building and almost all stock was lost to 
the fire, the health service responded 
on the day with a calm and controlled 
approach thanks to our Interim CEO, 
Andrea Dunlop and Director of Clinical 
Services, Margie McLeod and her staff 
working to keep our valued residents 
safe from smoke from the fire. Special 
thanks to all staff who assisted on the 
day, including those not rostered who 
came in or stayed beyond the end of 
their shift times, and to Jason Colville, 
Maintenance Officer, for calling and 
responding with Emergency Services on 
the day and in the recovery phase for 
weeks afterwards.

The Hesse Board wish to thank the 
Emergency Services including local fire 
brigades who ‘turned out’ to the fire and 
worked to minimise any potential impacts 
on the health service and the local area.  
The Board thank community businesses 
and individuals for conveying their 
support to help rebuild the Op Shop.  
The Board also commend the volunteer 
Hospital Auxiliary members for their 
resilience on the day of the fire, and in 
the months afterwards as they dealt with 

the loss of a very precious part of their 
daily life.  

The Op Shop provided a place for 
these members to come together to 
serve their community and provide 
valuable financial support to the health 
service.  For the members, the Op Shop 
wasn’t ‘just’ a shop, but a community of 
‘like’ people who enjoyed achieving 
their mission, the work involved and 
each other’s company. These volunteer 
members are passionate about providing 
a needed service to those donating 
goods and those seeking them.  

During February 2021 the Board initiated 
the process to re-build this valuable 
resource, consulting with architect Allen 
Kong and his team, the Hospital Auxiliary 
members and other stakeholders. The 
outcome to date has progressed to 
develop a Master Plan for consultation 
and planning stages with the view to 
rebuild the much valued health service 
and community asset.

Work continues to ensure we remain 
accreditation ready at all times, with 
most accreditations either current 
or delayed during the pandemic. An 
unannounced visit by the Aged Care 
Quality & Safety Commission focusing 
on infection prevention and control 
(including COVID-19 requirements) and 
outbreak management planning, was 
successfully completed in February 2021.

The Board initiated the recruitment 
process to replace our long-standing 
Chief Executive Officer, Peter Birkett.  
After interviewing several candidates, 
the Board Executive Committee 
recommended to the Board to 
appoint Carissa Brock to the position.  
Carissa brings extensive health sector 
experience to Hesse Rural Health and 
has settled well into the role.  

Since commencing, Carissa has taken 
time to review existing operational 
processes and made recommendations 
on some including making changes 

to the Executive positions’ reporting 
responsibilities to the Board. This has 
provided the Board with added insight 
into operations and assisted with 
building knowledge across both levels. 

As Chair of Hesse Rural Health for 
the past 5 years I have enjoyed the 
responsibility. I will step-down from the 
position at the end of 2021 and remain 
as a Director until the end of my final 
term in 2023. During my time as Chair I 
have seen the composition of the Board 
transition from long-standing directors 
to the 3 x 3 year tenure model. This 
process has provided opportunity for 
regularly reviewing the required skills 
on the Board that meet the future needs 
of the health service, and the growing 
communities in the region we serve.

During my time as Chair it’s been my 
absolute pleasure to work with the 
Directors and Executive, as well as staff 
and volunteers and to meet many of our 
residents. As well, working with key staff 
within the Department of Health, also, 
meeting Chairs of other health services 
in the South-West of Victoria. I can say 
the Chair and Director roles are integral 
to governing the health service, and 
are enhanced when the incumbents in 
these roles have the passion, strategic 
vision, and a clear understanding of 
its stakeholders and what the health 
service’s role is within the community it 
serves.

Hesse Rural Health has achieved much 
in the industry of aged care, and I 
look forward to seeing Hesse grow its 
people and processes to maintain its 
reputational standing delivering the best 
aged care, dementia, residential, acute 
and community services to our valued 
community.

Kathy Taylor
Chair



F ROM T HE 
CEO

My welcome to Hesse Rural Health 
has been a wonderful experience, 
meeting with the community, our clients 
and residents, and our dedicated and 
passionate staff. Seeing their teamwork 
and resilience in action as they rose 
to not only the ongoing challenges 
of a pandemic, but also this change in 
leadership, makes me feel very fortunate 
to be leading such a wonderful group. 
It is inspiring to see the continued focus 
of Hesse’s staff to ensure our community 
and residents have ongoing access to 
high quality care.

I commenced as Chief Executive Officer 
at Hesse on 30 November 2020, just 
shortly after we lost our Opportunity 
Shop to a fire. That loss was devastating 
to our generous Hospital Auxiliary 
volunteers, staff and community. But 
the loss clearly demonstrated the 
community’s strong connection, with 
many working together to protect 
the health service and our aged care 
residents on the day, and planning 
together for a rebuild into the future. 

Following on after the departure of a 
long-term CEO was always going to 
be a great challenge, but one I have 
been excited to take on. Connection 
to our team and community was an 
early objective through this transition 
of long serving Executives, as was 
seeing and understanding the important 
services we provide across our region 
through our campuses in Winchelsea, 
Beeac, Rokewood and Bannockburn. 
This gave me greater insight to apply 
to the strategic planning process, in 
partnership with the Board of Directors 
and all stakeholders, as it is vital that 

our services reflect the needs of our 
community and clients. 

Previous key strategic decisions made 
by the Executive and Board Directors 
resulted in two much needed properties 
being acquired in early 2021. The 
purchase of the former “ADASS” 
building at 53 Hesse St was only made 
possible through the generosity of 
previous bequests provided to the 
health service. And after many years of 
efforts to acquire the old Scout Hall at 4 
Gosney St, a purchase option was made 
available, and with funding provided by 
the Hospital Auxiliary from previous Op 
Shop proceeds, this was finally able to 
be settled. 

Increasing our connection with the 
community has been a key focus for 
improvement at Hesse Rural Health 
this year, particularly during a time 
of ongoing lockdowns and social 
distancing.  One of our accomplishments 
was the launching of our social media 
pages to provide real time updates 
on important health information and 
celebrate the wonderful services 
provided at Hesse, and to keep our 
residents, consumers, and families linked 
during these tougher times.

Undertaking Pandemic Planning is 
challenging, and necessary decisions 
to support and protect our workforce, 
residents and community are always 
difficult to make. Placing restrictions 
on visitors, services, and our planned 
activities for both our residents and 
social support clients impacts on the 

ability to stay connected to family 
and friends. We are proud to be 
embracing new technologies to ensure 
we can maintain family and community 
connections, and provide the best 
standard of care for all who use our 
services. The Hesse staff have showed 
innovation and flexibility in order 
to achieve social connection and at 
the same time maintain safety of our 
consumers and staff. 

As a dedicated provider of person-
centred residential aged care services, 
we have also taken a great deal of 
interest in the findings of the Royal 
Commissions into aged care. The focus 
on aged care highlighted areas requiring 
improvement, while affirming much of 
what we are already doing well.

I take this opportunity to thank all staff, 
volunteers, board directors, stakeholders 
and the wider community for their 
service, support, strength, patience and 
resilience throughout this challenging 
and changing year. I continue to be very 
proud of the staff, the teamwork has 
been extraordinary, displaying many 
ways to ensure we continue in providing 
the best of care at Hesse Rural Health. 

Carissa Brock
Chief Executive Officer
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GOVERNANCE

Kathy Taylor
Chair
BBus GDipOHM,
MAICD
Appointed: 2014

Naida Hutton
BEd, GDipHRIRM, 
RM, RN, GAICD
Appointed: 2015

John Sutherland
Dip Bus, CA
Appointed: 2018

Max Arnott
Vice Chair
Appointed: 2018

Peter Nemtsas
Dip Bus Admin, 
CertIV TrngAssmnt
Appointed: 2018

Ian Whiting
GAICD
Appointed: 2020

Alice Bennett
MAppMan(Nurs), 
BN, MN, RN
Appointed: 2017

Therese O’Loughlin
BSc (BioHealth), GDip 
(Epidemiol & Biostats), 
RM, RN
Appointed: 2017

Tracy Williams
MAICD, MA (SIP), 
EMBA, MA (IR) 
Appointed: 2020

Mikel Dean
BCom, CPA 
Appointed: 2018
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MAICD
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Linda Wong
BA (Hons)
Appointed: 2018
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GOVERNANCE COMMITTEES
Clinical Governance & Ethics

Naida Hutton (Chair), Peter Nemtsas, Therese O’Loughlin, Michelle Stocks, Linda Wong

The final report of Royal Commission into 
Aged Care Quality and Safety, released 
on the 1st of March 2021, made 148 
recommendations, and laid out an extensive 
plan to overhaul the Aged Care system in 
this country.  The Clinical Governance & 
Ethics Committee will be responsible for 
implementing those recommendations that 
relate to clinical care. Recommendation 
13 entitled “Embedding high quality aged 
care”, sets out five characteristics of high-
quality aged care, namely, diligent and skilful 
care, safe and insightful care, caring and 
compassionate relationships, empowering 
care and timely care. 

We welcome the report and, while we 
believe our existing reporting mechanisms 
are robust and our care is high-quality, any 
Commission recommendations that might 
strengthen our existing processes and 
delivery of care are highly valued. Our 
committee’s purpose remains unchanged, 
and includes, but is not limited to, reviewing 
indicators of clinical quality care, both 
prescribed and locally established, 
reviewing complaints and compliment data, 
encouraging evidence-based practice 
initiatives, assuring compliance obligations 

are fulfilled and promoting personalised and 
ethical care. 

Hesse has a strong culture of reporting 
incidents and near misses. This is important 
as it provides an accurate picture of where 
systems and processes are working well, in 
addition to highlighting opportunities for 
improvement. The nature and severity of 
the events dictates the reporting mechanism 
adopted. 

From April 1st 2021, Hesse has implemented 
the Serious Incident Response Scheme for 
reporting to the Aged Care Quality and 
Safety Commission, which prescribes 8 types 
of reportable incidents, which are rated 
as Priority 1 or 2.  Priority 1 incidents must 
be reported within 24 hours and from the 
1st of October 2021, Priority 2 incidents 
must be reported within 30 days.  This is in 
addition to ensuring adherence to the Safer 
Care Victoria mandatory reporting of any 
sentinel event from July 1st 2019, which has 11 
prescribed categories. 

Another focus of this committee has been 
the evaluation of reports relating to 
OH&S incidents, including any practice 

or environment changes that have been 
implemented as a result of the incidents, and 
to track the effectiveness of these changes.  
Management works closely with staff who 
have been involved in OH&S incidents, 
implementing changes based on joint 
decision making.

The Global Pandemic continues to challenge. 
Hesse staff are doing extraordinary work 
in extraordinary times and demonstrate skill 
and innovation as they navigate their way 
through the challenges. Wellbeing of our 
residents and clients is always of paramount 
consideration, and staff continue to seek 
ways to mitigate the effects of isolation 
and loneliness during periods of visitor 
restrictions.

Our dedicated staff’s continued efforts in 
providing safe care in the critical roles 
they play for our communities, against the 
backdrop of this COVID-19 pandemic in such 
unprecedented times, is greatly recognized 
and appreciated. 

Naida Hutton
Chair, Clinical Governance & Ethics 
Committee



Mikel Dean (Chair), Max Arnott, Alice Bennett, John Sutherland

Finance, Risk & Audit

Buildings & Environment
Peter Nemtsas (Chair), Mikel Dean, Naida Hutton, Therese O’Loughlin, John Sutherland, Linda Wong

2020/2021 financial year has seen significant 
challenges for Hesse, the ongoing pandemic 
continues to stretch the business both 
operationally and financially. There has 
also been significant executive change 
with a large volume of experience leaving 
the service. Notwithstanding these huge 
challenges Hesse has still been able to 
produce an operating surplus of $106k.

This is a result everyone should be very 
proud of, and has come about by continued 
support of governments, and the exceptional 
diligence and dedication of Hesse staff.

The 2020/2021 financial year has also 
seen the acquisition of 53 Hesse Street 

and the old Scout Hall, both assets will 
enable the continuation and expansion of 
Hesse’s services to our community. We all 
also experienced the devastating loss of 
the Op Shop building, which has bought 
both emotional and financial stress to the 
organization.

The operating result and asset acquisitions 
have set up Hesse to continue its operations 
and to take advantage of the ever growing 
Home Care Package sector.

I would like to acknowledge the hard work 
done by the staff and Executive led by Peter 
and new CEO Carissa. Thank you to the team 
at Davidson’s for its accountancy and to the 

Committee members for their time taken 
to read, interpret and discuss the monthly 
reports at meetings. Special mention to 
both departed Finance Committee members 
John Sutherland and Max Arnott for their 
significant contributions.

You will find the detailed financial outcome 
for the year 2021 within this annual report. 
It is with pleasure that I commend the report 
to you.

Mikel Dean
Chair, Finance, Risk & Audit Committee

The major focus of the Building & 
Environment Committee throughout the 
year has been two-fold: the  development 
of Hesse Rural Health’s aged care precinct 
Master Plan and the re-building of the 
Opportunity Shop which was destroyed by 
fire. The Master Plan program has been put 
on hold to allow the organisation to focus on 
the rebuilding of the Op Shop. 

This Op Shop is proposed to be rebuilt 
at 44-46 Main Street, Winchelsea. The 
rebuilding project is being undertaken to 
address the most urgent replacement of 
the Op Shop. The re-purposing of the old 
Foxes Den Café (Orchard’s Bakery) building 
allows for the retention and adaptive re-use 
of the heritage building, which supports 
the heritage goals of the Surf Coast Shire. 
In addition, the staged proposal includes 
Community Health function adjacent to the 
Op Shop which will also have main street 
frontage. The project is proposed to be 
implemented in 3 stages which are:

• Stage 1 - Renovate existing shop and 
adjacent house and build link to act as 
a temporary back of house. Associated 

accessible carpark and driveway access 
will be provided. 

• Stage 2 - Build new Op Shop shed area, 
delivery bay and back of house, new 
driveway and carparks as needed for 
this stage. 

• Stage 3 - Build new Community Health 
offices and remainder of the carpark 
and through road to the existing internal 
access road.

The Master Plan design objectives are 
intended to align with the Hesse Rural Health 
Strategic plan. The design, led by Architect 
Allen  Kong will integrate principles of 
ecological responsibility, generate a 
sustainable architecture and be flexible to 
adapt to alternative purposes.

The Master Plan has a long-term vision, is 
subject to changes wherever necessary and 
contains a series of manageable and discrete 
projects. The immediate need is to upgrade 
the Chelsea Lodge facilities and meet 
accommodation preferences of prospective 
residents, and also to more effectively 
integrate administration offices. A design and 
a business case has been presented to the 

Board for approval. 

The anticipated outcomes of the Master Plan 
are to:

• Commission two additional aged care 
beds,

• Improve resident dining and activity 
areas,

• Provide greater access to the outdoor 
environment for residents, visitors and 
staff,

• Provide contemporary and functional 
staff office areas, and

• Improve consumer and community 
engagement.

I would like to thank the Committee members 
and management for their contribution 
and support throughout the year and look 
forward to these projects that will produce 
benefits to the community into the future.

Peter Nemtsas
Chair, Buildings and Environment 
Committee

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEES
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Marketing & Fundraising
Ian Whiting (Chair), Alice Bennett, Michelle Stocks, Kathy Taylor, Tracy Williams

This project will require considerable and 
generous community donations to complete 
the works. 

This year we have expanded the Marketing 
and Fundraising Committee Terms of 
Reference to include membership with a 
minimum of two elected Board Directors, one 
member of the Community and Consumer 
Advisory Committee, one member from 
the Hospital Auxiliary, and between 4 to 7 
Leading Community Volunteers. 

Leading Community Volunteers are people 
who are influential and respected in the 
community and can offer the Health Service: 

• Access to community groups 

• Direct contact with business leaders 

• The human resources of ability, skills 
and knowledge that have made them 
successful 

• New ideas and a fresh approach to the 
Health Service’s fundraising strategy 

• A diverse range of opinion on the 
Health Service’s relationship with our 
community 

We encourage members of our community 
with these attributes to please contact the 
health service to join our vibrant committee. 
We also encourage staff with ideas and 
energy to join as well. 

Marketing of Hesse will continue to be an 
important focus of the committee and this 
year we have adopted a newer version of 
the Hesse Logo and updated all letterheads 
and marketing material with this logo. 
Effective marketing, fundraising and facility 
improvements are crucial to ensuring we 
continue to achieve high occupancy levels in 
our residential aged care. 

The committee has many exciting fundraising 
projects and events planned for the future, 
so hopefully we will break the shackles of 
COVID-19 in 2022 and be able to plan major 
events with the confidence they will not be 
cancelled. 

Ian Whiting
Chair, Marketing & Fundraising Committee

Marketing and fundraising is crucial to the 
ongoing viability of Hesse Rural Health as 
we aim to raise valuable funds for capital 
projects to enhance the health service 
infrastructure to ensure Hesse remains a 
leader in rural aged and dementia residential 
care. 

Over many years, the health service has been 
reliant on the generosity of the Winchelsea 
Hospital Auxiliary particularly from the 
operations of its Op Shop which generated 
around $80K of funds per year. Devastatingly 
the Op Shop was destroyed by fire on 
November 9th 2020. Hesse is committed 
to rebuilding the Op Shop to ensure this 
wonderful community venture can continue 
to raise valuable funds. 

This year we launched our inaugural annual 
appeal with proceeds this year going 
towards the rebuild and relocation of the 
Op Shop to 44-46 Main St, the site of the 
former Orchard Bakery. This is a significant 
project for the Winchelsea community as it 
will provide a new home for the Op Shop 
and also restore an historic building. 
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ST RAT EGIC PLAN

Partnering for  
Success

Collaboration, shared skills and 
formation of strategic alliances 
with compatible organisations 
and stakeholders are required for 
the organisation to be efficient, 
effective and successful.

A Skilled 
and Engaged 
Workforce

Investing in employees and the 
volunteers workforce will ensure 
they remain skilled, satisfied and 
meaningfully engaged to deliver 
effective services, and enable 
the organisation to remain a 
respected employer of choice.

Infrastructure 
Growth and 
Development

Hesse is responsive to the 
changing community profile and 
demand for services, considering 
immediate, short and long term 
needs for infrastructure, growth 
and development.

A Sustainable 
Business Culture

Financial practices and strategies 
will be based upon sound, ethical 
and innovative business principles 
to ensure future viability.

Integrated 
Health & 

Wellbeing

Incorporating health promotion, 
prevention and early intervention 
concepts, standards and values 
into health service delivery will 
benefit consumers, our staff and 
broader community.

Accessible 
and Relevant 

Health Service 
Throughout the 

Lifespan

Services provided will be 
available throughout the lifespan, 
based upon evidence of needs 
with clear and accessible 
pathways facilitating effective 
links to the services consumers 
require.

Achieving 
Excellence and 

Innovation

Hesse will build upon a culture 
of safety, quality and continuous 
improvement in the drive for 
service excellence and innovation. 

Our Community 
is the Key

Hesse respects the important role 
it plays for our rural community, 
and individuals residing 
within it, to facilitate effective 
participation.

Effective 
Service 

Promotion

To be a relevant health service to 
our catchment communities, Hesse 
will ensure that the public are 
aware of what the organisation 
can offer.
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ORGANISATIONAL 
STRUCTURE

Board of Directors

Financial Accounting

Stephen Wight (Davidsons)
BCom, CA, GAICD

District Director  
Medical Administration

Dr Didir Imran
MBBS, MHlthServMt

Chief Executive Officer

Carissa Brock
BBus, BComp, MCHSM

Manager 
Community Services

Josie Gebert
RM, RN, MACN

Director of  
Clinical Services

Margie McLeod
RN, BN, Certcritcare, MPH

Manager Acute & 
Residential Care

Program Areas

• Residential Aged Care
• Urgent Care
• Inpatient Acute
• Dementia
• Palliative
• Respite

Quality 
Coordinator

Specialist Portfolios

• Infection Control
• Smart Lift
• Continence
• Nurse Education

Leisure and Lifestyle

ACFI CoordinationVisiting Medical Officers

Volunteers

General Services

• Environmental
• Catering
• Maintenance
• Gardening

Community Services 
Coordinator

Community Nursing

• Hospital in the Home
• Post Acute Care
• District Nursing
• Domiciliary Midwifery

Social Support Groups

Volunteers
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Director of 
Corporate Services

John Brockway
B.Com, CPA

Home Care Packages

Infrastructure

• Human Resources
• Service Development
• Complaints Management

Children’s Services

• Occasional Child Care
• Facilitated Play Group

Allied Health

• Dietetics
• Physiotherapy
• Occupational Therapy
• Diabetes Education

Administration

• Reception
• Payroll
• Accounts
• Health Information 

Management
• Information Technology

• Aged Care Business Systems
• Consumer Participation
• Governance Support
• Management Accounting
• Marketing & Communications

Health Promotion
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In Hesse’s response to the continuing 
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, ongoing 
careful planning was crucial in keeping 
our clients and residents safe. To remain as 
prepared as possible for the challenges an 
outbreak presents, importance was placed 
on continuing  service delivery in the midst 
of a number of possible scenarios. Outbreak 
prevention strategies were implemented to 
ensure the continued safety of our residents, 
staff, and the community.    

Vaccinating our aged care residents and 
staff against COVID-19 was an important 
step in providing further protection from the 
pandemic. As part of the phase 1a rollout, 
residents and aged care staff received 
priority access to COVID-19 vaccination, 
with 92% of the residents electing to receive 
their first dose in mid-March at an internal 
vaccination clinic. 

The Barwon South West Public Health Unit 
vaccination outreach team has continued to 
work in partnership with Hesse, including our 
own trained Immunisation Nurses, to ensure 

residents and all staff have been supported 
with timely access to a COVID-19 vaccine. 

To help slow the spread of COVID-19, and 
to keep our aged care residents and staff 
safe, Hesse facilitated regular asymptomatic 
testing clinics for all staff working in 
residential aged care. As COVID-19 can 
spread widely and quickly, some people 
may be infectious before their symptoms 
develop. This scheduled testing of staff 
who do not have symptoms is a voluntary 
program designed to rapidly identify 
undetected cases of COVID-19 and minimise 
the spread of the virus to staff and residents. 
The asymptomatic testing program of our 
workers helped to ensure a safe place of 
work for them and a safe home for our 
residents and their visitors.

To ensure our workforce is best protected 
from respiratory 
hazards like 
COVID-19, a 
comprehensive 
respiratory 

protection program was established. This 
included undertaking fit testing for staff 
who will be required to wear protective 
respiratory equipment within the workplace. 
In higher risk settings, it is essential to ensure 
that our workers are adequately protected, 
with surgical masks alone not considered 
sufficient in a COVID-19 outbreak zone.. 

Fit testing ensures that staff are wearing 
the best respirator for their face shape and 
size, and is performed through the use of fit 
testing machines. The purpose of this process 
is to verify which selected models and sizes 
of protective equipment best fits the wearer. 
The process takes on average one hour per 
staff member, depending on complexity and 
the number of masks required, in order to 
find a suitable fit. During June, 87 frontline 
staff were successfully fit-tested. 

PANDEMIC MANAGEMENT
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MAINTAINING PERSON CENTREDNESS

Hesse Rural Health reviews visiting 
arrangements regularly to ensure aged care 
residents remain living in an environment that 
is safe and minimises the risk of COVID-19 
transmission in our residential aged care 
facility. Visitor restrictions were guided by the 
requirements from the Chief Health Officer 
and relevant government departments, 
taking into account the level of COVID-19 
transmission risk in the community. Visitor 
numbers were at times capped, and sometimes 
reduced to only immediate family, or during 
lockdowns, permitted reasons were the only 
reasons for visiting. 

In ensuring social connection was maintained, 
our Leisure and Lifestyle staff continued to 
support communication wherever possible 
through various means including use of 
electronic media or visitor pods. This resulted 
in many residents being able to remain 
connected with friends and family through 
contact-free face to face visits. 

The utilisation of our air lock entrances 
as visitor pods, where friends and family 

gathered inside the undercover foyer 
entrance with the resident separated by glass 
and seated inside, allowed for residents to 
remain in touch on a much more personal 
level. For those unable to attend in person 
the lifestyle staff provide technology support 
through video conferencing or social media, 
whilst care staff ensured regular updates 
were provided to families. Lifestyle activities 
were regularly revised, working together 
with our residents’ guidance to develop a 
full program of appropriate and interactive 
value-added items based on the restrictions 
at the time. 

Many measures were introduced to ensure 
all staff and visitors were appropriately 
screened before entering and infection 
prevention methods in place such as face 
masks and temperature checks. Hesse is very 
appreciative for the assistance shown in 
ensuring compliance to these measures, and 
importantly note, there has been no positive 
cases of COVID-19 at Hesse Rural Health to 
date.  



FORGING FORWARD WITH NEW SERVICES
On Thursday 1st October 2020, Hesse Rural 
Health commenced delivery of services 
within the Commonwealth Home Support 
Program (CHSP) to consumers in the 
Winchelsea and Winchelsea West areas. 
Previously this program was delivered by the 
Surf Coast Shire. The new services includes 
delivered meals, domestic assistance, home 
maintenance, home modifications, flexible 
respite, personal care and transport. The 
transition undertaken required the support of 
the broader Community Services team and 
included calling on the services of Hesse’s 

Health Promotion Officer to assist with the 
vital initial meetings with consumers. The 
successful transition was overseen by our 
Home Care Coordinator.

To support the new program, two Health 
Care Workers were initially employed 
and a fleet vehicle added. More Health 
Care Worker hours have been added as 
the programs have grown, with Hesse now 
supporting 95 consumers who use one or 
more of these services. Some programs, 
including home modifications and home 

COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES ACROSS OUR 
CATCHMENT
Hesse provides a variety of Community 
Health services across the catchment area 
surrounding Winchelsea, Rokewood and 
Beeac. During a year heavily impacted by the 
COVID-19 pandemic, our Health Promotion 
team continued to deliver many important 
services, showing creativity and resilience 
to ensure our local communities were fully 
supported. The ongoing impact of COVID-19 
restrictions caused some disruption to our 
regular community group meetings, who 
still met whenever possible, and maintained 
constant communication throughout. Our 
community education programs were also 
impacted, but were able to be delivered in 
person where restrictions allowed. 

A highlight for the Community Health team 
was the presentation of the play Carpe 
Diem (Seize the Day) in Rokewood. This was 
delivered in partnership with the Golden 
Plains Shire and Rokewood/Corindhap 
Football and Netball Club. Carpe Diem 
is an award winning play which portrays 
every day Australian males dealing with the 
issues of health, grief, loss and depression. 
The play has been described as a hilarious 
play with a serious message and it manages 

to provide an entertaining look at how, 
through friendship, proper care and support, 
men can find the strength to cope and the 
tools to carry on. Following the play mental 
health and wellbeing was discussed, with 
a consensus the play had hit the mark in 
delivering an important message. It was a 
timely reminder to look out for each other 
and to seek help if needed.   

One thing that was not hindered by the 
current climate was the opportunity to 
evaluate Hesse’s well known Farm Safety 
in Schools program. With funding from the 
former Department 
of Health and Human 
Services, the National 
Centre for Farmer 
Health and Deakin 
University gained the 
opportunity to evaluate 
25 years of delivery 
of this program to 
schools across Hesse’s 
catchment area. It has 
been such an exciting 
opportunity! 

The interim report for the project was 
positive and reinforces the success of this 
program – we now await the final report 
and recommendations. The program is the 
only one of its kind in Australia and delivers 
a 6 week course to Grades 5 and 6 on Farm 
Safety, with a 7th week being a Farm Safety 
risk assessment walk on a local property. 
Hesse is keen to share the opportunity to 
teach the Farm Safety message to other 
services and we are hopeful the outcomes of 
the project will help to facilitate this.

maintenance services are sourced externally. 
The delivered meals program is supported by 
Hesse’s Social Support cook, located at 53 
Hesse Street, who cooks and packs the meals 
on site.

Whilst the transition has  brought with it some 
challenges, consumer feedback has been 
extremely positive as they have welcomed 
Hesse as their new provider, and we look 
forward to continuing to support our 
consumers in Winchelsea with these services.
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STAFF DRIVING CHANGE FOR SUSTAINABLE 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING THROUGH THE 
WORKPLACE ACHIEVEMENT PROGRAM
Hesse is dedicated to providing a healthy 
environment for our employees and utilises 
the Workplace Achievement Program 
Framework to make sustainable changes to 
improve staff health and wellbeing.

The Workplace Achievement Program is 
an evidence based health and wellbeing 
program that helps to create a healthier 
workplace environment. The program 
is aligned with the World Health 
Organisation’s Health Workplace Model 
and is facilitated by Cancer Council Victoria. 
With support from the Hesse Rural Health 
Leadership group, the Health Promotion 
Team and our Health and Wellbeing 
Champions, Hesse successfully attained 
the Foundations benchmark in March 2021.
Consultation and communication with 
staff across the organisation, 
through a health and wellbeing 
survey, was central to creating 
a plan based on staff feedback 
and achieving the Foundations 
benchmark.   Asking staff what 
they wanted from their health 
and wellbeing program, and 
putting their feedback into 
action, has meant they are 
driving the development of 
health and wellbeing strategies. 

The staff consultation process 
identified three priority areas: 
Physical activity, healthy eating 
and mental health.  All areas 
were rated highly by staff and 
they wanted to act on all three 
areas.  

Some of the health and wellbeing initiatives 
include:

• A Step challenge where staff walked a 
virtual circuit between the three Hesse 
worksites located at neighbouring 
towns. Pedometers sponsored by a 
local pharmacy were given as randomly 
drawn prizes to participants in the 
challenge.

• Completion of the Healthy Eating 
and Catering policy which has been 
submitted and approved by HEAS. 

• Audit of onsite food available to 
staff (staff meals) for compliance with 
Healthy Choices guidelines. 

• Availability of fresh fruit in staff rooms, 
provided by the organisation.

• Participation at a local level in the 
regional Choose Water Everyday 
campaign.

• Raising awareness of importance of 
healthy eating and sleep on mental 
health and promoting the Employee 
Assistance Program (EAP). 

• Revised and updated Staff Health and 
Wellbeing policy.

Hesse’s success in achieving the Foundations 
level was celebrated in the Barwon South 
West Regional Workplace Achievement 
Program newsletter.

COMMITMENT TO THE PREVENTION OF 
FAMILY VIOLENCE

WORKFORCE STATISTICS - Full Time Equivalent (FTE)

June Current Month Average Monthly FTE / June Year to Date

2021 2020 2021 2020 2019 2018

Nursing 35.3 34.1 26.31 30.13 29.17 29.28

Administration & Clerical 10.2 8.9 10.80 10.55 10.49 10.06

Medical Support 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hotel & Allied Services 47.1 43.8 40.01 34.94 30.33 31.58

Medical Officers 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hospital Medical Officers 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ancillary Staff (Allied Health) 3.7 3.8 4.15 7.03 9.99 8.20

TOTAL 96.3 90.6 81.27 82.65 80.51 79.12
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The Strengthening Hospital Responses to 
Family Violence (SHRFV) program provides 
a whole-of-organisation approach to 
strengthening health services’ response to 
family violence. It aims to support staff both 
professionally and personally, and introduce 
practices in hospitals that assist patients 
affected by family violence.

Hesse Rural Health continues to participate 
and value the SHRFV program, with key 
objectives achieved including implementing 
and embedding an Information Sharing 
Scheme and completing participation in the 
System Audit Family violence Evaluation 
(SAFE) Project (funded by the Collier 
Charitable Fund). Hesse conducted a robust 
research initiative using a purpose-designed 
System Audit Tool (SAFE Tool) to evaluate 
the impact of SHRFV. The program directors 
congratulated Hesse on our achievements 
in the ongoing implementation of a whole-
of-organisation response to family violence, 
with several areas of good practice found 

COMMITMENT TO THE PREVENTION OF 
FAMILY VIOLENCE

Family violence 
is a health issue

Occupational Violence Statistics 2020-21

1. Workcover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 FTE. 0

2. Number of accepted workcover claims with lost time injury with an occupational 
violence cause per 1,000,000 hours worked.

0

3. Number of occupational violence incidents reported. 27

4. Number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 FTE. 32.03

5. Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, illness or 
condition

4.74

DEFINITIONS: for the purposes of the above statistics the following definitions apply. Occupational 
violence: any incident where an employee is abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances arising 
out of, or in the course of their employment. Incidents: an event or circumstances that could have 
resulted in, or did result in, harm to an employee. Incidents of all severity rating must be included. Injury, 
Illness or Condition: This includes all reported harm as a result of the incident, regardless of whether the 
employee required time off work or submitted a claim. 

within the SAFE audit.

Our organisational policies, procedures, 
guidelines, governance and leadership, along 
with organisational culture reflecting the 
recognition of family violence as a women’s 
health issue and a commitment to gender 
equality, were highlights of the audit. As a 
small rural health service, this great result 
was only achieved through our successful 
collaborations with our sub-regional partner 
agencies Colac Area Health, Great Ocean 
Road Health and Barwon Health, which we 
are grateful for.



NEW PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS
53 Hesse St is utilised by our very important 
Social Support activities (formerly ADASS) 
and houses our expanding Home Care 
Packages team. An opportunity presented to 
acquire the ownership of this building from 
the Surf Coast Shire, which was accepted by 
our Board of Directors. Settlement occurred 
in late April 2021.

Owning 53 Hesse St ensures all of our 
important Social Support activities can 
continue to be delivered from the purpose-
fitted building. This includes programs 
that support mental health and community 
connections such as house craft, guest 
speakers, entertainers, theme days, Café 
club, Bus to the hub, outings and Men’s group 
activities. It was an objective of the board 
to ensure funds could be made available to 
purchase 53 Hesse St, and this was only made 
possible by the previous bequests provided 
to Hesse Rural Health that we are very 
grateful for. 

It also provides an important space for our 
home care programs, with ready access 
for consumers to meet with case managers. 
Our Home Care Packages (HCP) program 
continues to grow, with the number of 

packages currently held double that of July 
2020. Growth is not without its challenges, 
and along with the newly acquired 
Commonwealth Home Support Program 
(CHSP) services, there has been a need to 
address how this and future growth can be 
supported.  Issues such as recruitment and 
infrastructure have been forefront in how the 
HCP program can sustain further projected 
growth, and provide the level and quality of 
services our consumers require in order to 
be supported to stay in their own homes.

Another property acquisition occurred on 
Monday 3rd May 2021, with the Winchelsea 
Hospital & Nursing Home Society Inc. (a 
partner of Hesse Rural Health) purchasing 
4 Gosney St, Winchelsea from The Scouts 
Association of Australia Victoria Branch. This 
old Scouts Hall was an important piece of 
land to the health service, being adjacent to 
our main site at 8 Gosney St. This was a long-
term strategic decision, years in the master 
planning process, to provide for future 
growth in services in the years to come.  

The purchase was funded by the Winchelsea 
Hospital Auxiliary, through previous 
fundraising by their Opportunity Shop at 2 

Gosney St. Making the pledge to donate the 
purchase price had been discussed for some 
time, and was officially arranged in October 
2020, the month before the unfortunate event 
that resulted in the Opportunity Shop being 
destroyed by fire in November 2020.
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Donations of ≥ $200,000
• Winchelsea Hospital Auxiliary .

Donations of ≥ $5,000
• McNamara, LJ 

Donations of ≤ $100
• Inverleigh Senior Citizens Club Inc.



COMPLIANCE 
Responsible Bodies Declaration

Attestations

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, I am pleased to present the Report of Operations for Hesse Rural Health Service 
for the year ending 30 June 2021.

Kathy Taylor, Chair 
8 October 2021

Data Integrity

I, Carissa Brock, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that 
reported data accurately reflects actual performance. Hesse Rural Health Service has critically reviewed these controls and processes 
during the year.

Carissa Brock, Chief Executive Officer 
8 October 2021

Conflict of Interest

I, Carissa Brock, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that it has 
complied with the requirements of hospital circular 07/2017 Compliance reporting in health portfolio entities (Revised) and has implemented 
a ‘Conflict of Interest’ policy consistent with the minimum accountabilities required by the VPSC. Declaration of private interest forms have 
been completed by all executive staff within Hesse Rural Health Service and members of the board, and all declared conflicts have been 
addressed and are being managed. Conflict of interest is a standard agenda item for declaration and documenting at each executive 
board meeting.

Carissa Brock, Chief Executive Officer 
8 October 2021

Integrity, Fraud & Corruption

I Carissa Brock, certify that Hesse Rural Health Service has put in place appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that Integrity, 
fraud and corruption risks have been reviewed and addressed at Hesse Rural Health Service during the year.

Carissa Brock, Chief Executive Officer 
8 October 2021

Financial Management Compliance Attestation

I, Kathy Taylor, on behalf of the Responsible Body, certify that the Hesse Rural Health Service has no Material Compliance Deficiency with 
respect to the applicable Standing Directions under the Financial Management Act 1994 and Instructions.

Kathy Taylor, Chair 
8 October 2021
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The restrictions associated with COVID-19 meant that 
Hesse’s Social Support Groups were unable to meet in 
person for much of 2020, with groups not returning in person 
until January 2021. This did not stop our dedicated Social 
Support staff from staying connected with our consumers 
via creative means. This included the distribution of monthly 
newsletters, organising a virtual Oaks day, creating a 
community jigsaw puzzle, delivering activities and care 
packs and making many phone calls.

Our consumers were very pleased to return in January, with 
the first sessions back used to reconnect, reflect on 2020 
and most importantly plan together the pathway for 2021. 
Social distancing requirements meant some re-arranging 
of the Beeac and Winchelsea venues, which everyone has 
supported and adapted to. The Social Support programs 
have continued to function at nearly full capacity, within the 
restrictions and guidelines applicable.



SOCIAL SUPPORT GROUPS 
BACK IN ACTION
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STATEMENT OF  
PRIORITIES
The Statement of Priorities is a key document of accountability between the Department of Health (DH) and Hesse 
Rural Health as a small rural public health service. This agreement defines the government’s key priorities and 
required actions, and identifies Hesse’s 2020-2021 deliverables and outcomes.

In 2020-2021 Hesse Rural Health assisted with the following state-wide priorities to develop and implement 
important system reforms, including modernising our health system through redesigned governance; driving system 
reforms that deliver better population health, high quality care and improved patient outcomes and experiences; 
and reforming clinical services to ensure we are delivering our community the best value care.

Strategic Priorities Outcome

Maintain robust COVID-19 readiness and response, 
working with the department to ensure rapid response 
to outbreaks, if and when they occur, which includes 
providing testing for the community and staff, where 
necessary and if required. This includes preparing 
to participate in, and assist with, the implementation 
of COVID-19 vaccine immunisation program rollout, 
ensuring the local community’s confidence in the 
program.

Pandemic Plan and Outbreak Management Procedures 
including Pop-Up Testing Site Plan implemented. 
Undertake on-site COVID-19 Vaccination Clinics, 
promote regional hubs and local GP services.  

Engage with the community to address the needs of 
patients, especially vulnerable Victorians whose care 
has been delayed due to the pandemic and provide 
the necessary “catch-up” care to support them to get 
back on track.

Provide telephone “keep-in-touch” support visits, 
reschedule delayed care and implement support 
systems to ensure needs of patients addressed.

As providers of care, respond to the recommendations 
of the Royal Commission into Victoria’s Mental Health 
system and the Royal Commission into Aged Care 
Quality and Safety.

The Royal Commission into Aged Care Quality 
and Safety was released by the Commonwealth 
Government on 1 March 2021. The Commonwealth 
Government announced a budget package of support 
on 11 May 2021 and at the same time released their full 
response to the Royal Commission. The health service 
acknowledges the impact of the Royal Commission into 
Victoria’s mental health system. As providers of Aged 
Care services, the health service commits to working 
collaboratively with the Victorian and Commonwealth 
Governments to respond to the broad range of 
recommendations to improve outcomes for older 
Victorians.  As a priority, the health service will identify 
and prepare for and comply with changes that come 
into effect from 1 July 2021.

Develop and foster local health partner relationships 
to continue delivering collaborative approaches to 
planning, procurement and service delivery at scale. 
Including prioritising innovative ways to deliver health 
care through shared expertise and workforce models, 
virtual care, co-commissioning services and surgical 
outpatient reform.

Ensure effective linkages and care protocols to 
improve patient continuity of care with Barwon Health 
discharge planners for ‘Hospital in the Home’ and 
‘Post Acute Care’ programs. Participate in regional 
collaborations including BSW Health Service 
Partnerships such as Better@Home initiative and 
Subregional Collaborations including Strengthening 
Hospital Response to Family Violence.

Improve the health outcomes of Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander people by establishing culturally safe 
practices across all parts of the organisation to 
recognise and respect Aboriginal culture and deliver 
services that meet the needs, expectations and rights 
of Aboriginal patients, their families, and Aboriginal 
staff.

Framework in place, further implementation of 
welcome to country and reviewing physical welcome 
at sites. Annual completion of Aboriginal Cultural 
Safety E-Learning Package for workforce as a part of 
the 2021 Compulsory Training Program.



RISING FROM THE ASHES
The Winchelsea Hospital Auxiliary 
comprises of 35 enthusiastic volunteers 
who work tirelessly to raise important 
funds for the health service, and has been 
in existence for 65 years. After a few years 
of running lucrative trash and treasure 
stalls, they opened their own Opportunity 
Shop in January 2011 in the old Masonic 
Lodge at 2 Gosney Street. From there  the 
Auxiliary and Op Shop went from strength 
to strength.

Opening Friday to Monday, the shop 
attracted the weekend trade with people 
from all over Victoria dropping in to pick up 
a bargain. Profits grew each year enabling 
significant contributions to purchase much 
needed items for Hesse Rural Health, and 
more recently the purchase of the old Scout 
Hall at 4 Gosney Street, Winchelsea. 

Devastatingly on the morning of Monday 
9th November 2020, the Op Shop was 
destroyed by fire in a suspected arson 
attack. 

The fire was distressing to the Auxiliary 
volunteers who had been so generous 
with their time over many years. For many 

passionate volunteers and regular customers, 
the shop was a lifeblood providing great 
friendships. Not only did the residents of 
Winchelsea lose access to the shop, for 
many they also lost an important community 
connection. For the aged care residents of 
Hesse Rural Health, who loved nothing more 
than to wander up to the shop to check out 
the latest stock or just pop in for a chat, this 
opportunity was also lost.

Not ones to sit idle, the Auxiliary members 
continued to meet, and with the health 
service commenced planning a new base 
in a purpose built Op shop. Through master 
planning of Hesse Rural Health’s site, and 
subject to council planning approval, a 
new Op Shop is planned on the site of the 
former bakery and milkbar at 44-46 Main St, 
Winchelsea. 

This project will provide a new life to a high 
profile and historically significant, but under-
utilised, commercial building in Winchelsea. 
The proposed Op Shop design embraces the 
building’s valued heritage, and will recognise 
and pay respects to its significant history 
in the town, ensuring the legacy of both 

the former Orchard bakery and 
attached dwelling are protected.

This type of historical restoration 
will be significant for Winchelsea’s 
township and provides an ideal 
location for the Op Shop. Ensuring 
the many historical aspects of 
the buildings are preserved is a 
key focus, with a key part of this 
project to restore and celebrate 
the bakery’s historic oven and 
fireplaces, which has been built 
around and covered in during past 
years.

While an insurance claim is in 
process, this only replaces a building 
of the previous scale and does not 
allow for the costs associated with 
restoring this heritage building. 
Community fundraising support will 
be sought to give the Auxiliary a 
newer, bigger and better Op Shop 
for the community to access, but also 
importantly bring about a new era 
to this important set of buildings.





CLINICAL INCIDENTS & REVIEWS
Clinical incident reporting and the 
evaluation of this data assists us to improve 
clinical practice and care outcomes. It is 
an important aspect of risk management. A 
clinical incident is defined by the Australian 
Commission on Safety and Quality in Health 
Care as ‘an event or circumstance that 
resulted or could have resulted in unintended 
and/or unnecessary harm to a person and/
or a complaint, loss or damage’. Falls, 
medication safety events and skin tears are 
examples of commonly reported incidents 
but any clinical risk may be reported. Staff 
report incidents via the online incident 
management system called Riskman. 

Staff reported a total of 430 incidents, a 13% 
increase from the previous year, averaging 
35 incidents per month. The increased 
reporting rates are welcome as it provides 
Hesse with a clearer understanding of 
clinical risk through trend analysis, as well 
as the opportunity to manage the incident 
and put measures in place to minimise both 
individual and systemic risk. Hesse Rural 
Health strives for a no-blame culture to 
ensure staff feel comfortable to report to 

allow for matters to be addressed, with the 
increase in both the incident number and 
variety of incidents reported a reflection of 
this culture. All clinical incidents are followed 
up by managers and with broader staff input 
through the weekly incident review meeting, 
and monitored at the Quality Leadership 
Committee and the Clinical Governance and 
Ethics Committee. 

All incidents are given an incident severity 
rating from 1 to 4, with 1 signifying ‘severe’ 
and 4 as ‘no harm/ near miss’. No incidents 
that occurred were rated ‘severe’. 

In-depth case reviews are undertaken 
by a multi-disciplinary team for incidents 
rated as ‘moderate’ to better understand 
the factors preceding the incident with 
the aim to improve systems to minimise the 
risk of harm and prevent further incidents 
occurring. These in-depth case views are 
presented and discussed at the Quality 
Leadership Committee, General Practitioner 
meeting and Clinical Governance and Ethics 
Committee. Six incidents were rated as 
‘moderate’. 

Clinical Incident Type 2020-2021 2019-2020 2018-2019

Overall Number of Incidents 430 379 322

Falls 32% 39% 61%

Medication Errors 17% 21% 10%

Pressure Injuries 5% 4% 1%

Skin Tear 7% 11% 11%

Behavioural 19% 13% 8%

Clinical Deterioration 1% 1% 0%

Diet 1% 0% 2%

Other 18% 11% 7%
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FRD 22I   Workforce Data / Employment and Conduct Principles    18, 19 & 30  
FRD 22I   Occupational Health & Safety      19, 30 & 31  
 

Management and Structure

Attestation on Data Integrity          21   
Attestation on Managing Conflicts of Interest        21 
Attestation on Integrity, Fraud and Corruption        21

ATTESTATIONS

LEGISLATION  REQUIREMENT        PAGE 
FRD 22I   Manner of Establishment and the Relevant Ministers    Inside front & 1  
FRD 22I   Purpose, Functions, Powers and Duties      Inside front, 2 & 4 
FRD 22I   Nature and Range of Services Provided     Inside back 
FRD 22I   Activities, Programs and Achievements for the Reporting Period   2 & 4 
FRD 22I   Significant Changes in Key Initiatives and Expectations for the Future  2 & 4

Charter and Purpose

FRD 25D   Local Jobs First Act Disclosures      30   
SD 5.1.4   Financial Management Compliance Attestation     21 
SD 5.2.3   Declaration in Report of Operations      21

Other Relevant Reporting Directives

FRD 22I   Application and Operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982   30   
FRD 22I   Compliance With Building and Maintenance Provisions of Building Act 1993  30 
FRD 22I   Application and Operation of Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012   30  
FRD 22I   Statement on National Competition Policy     30 
FRD 22I   Application and Operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012   30 
FRD 22I   Summary of the Entity’s Environment Performance    32 
FRD 22I   Additional Information Available on Request     31

Legislation

FRD 22I   Summary of the Financial Results for the Year     34   
FRD 22I   Significant Changes in Financial Position During the Year    2, 4 & 34 
FRD 22I   Operational and Budgetary Objectives and Performance Against Objectives  2, 4 & 34 
FRD 22I   Subsequent Events        30 
FRD 22I   Details of Consultancies Over $10,000      31 
FRD 22I   Details of Consultancies Under $10,000     31 
FRD 22I   Disclosure of ICT Expenditure      34

Financial Information

Reporting on Outcomes from the Statement of Priorities 2020-21      25 & 34   
Occupational Violence Reporting         19 
Reporting Obligations under the Safe Patient Care Act 2015      30 
Reporting Obligations Under the Asset Management Accountability Framework    33

OTHER REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

MINISTERIAL DIRECTIONS
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Freedom of Information (FOI) 1982
The Service operates within the guidelines defined within the Freedom 
of Information Act 1982 and its subsequent amendments. For access to 
medical records there is a mandatory application fee of $29.60 that 
must accompany the written charges for searching, photocopying 
and postage.

A member of the public wishing to access information should make a 
written request to the Chief Executive Officer, Hesse Rural Health, 
8 Gosney Street, Winchelsea, VIC 3241 or on 5267 1200. Further 
information may be sought from www.foi.vic.gov.au.

One (1) FOI request was received from the general public in 2020-21.

Buildings and Maintenance
Hesse complies with the Building Act 1993, and relevant provisions 
of the ‘National Construction Code’ for publicly owned buildings 
during maintenance and redevelopment. An essential fire safety 
service maintenance program is in place.

Competitive Neutrality
Hesse is compliant with the requirements of the government statement 
‘Competitive Neutrality Policy Victoria’. The purpose is to account 
for advantages arising out of public ownership.

Carers Recognition Act 2012
The Carers Recognition Act 2012 recognises, promotes and values 
the role of people in care relationships. Hesse understands the 
benefits care relationships bring to patients, residents, their carers 
and the community. Hesse is compliant with Section 11 of the Act, 
and takes all practicable measures to ensure that its employees, 
agents and carers have an awareness and understanding of the care 
relationship principles. This is reflected in our commitment to a model 
of patient and family centred care, and the involvement of carers in 
the development and delivery of our service.

Safe Patient Care Act 2015

Hesse has no matters to report in relation to its obligations under 
Section 40 of the Safe Patient Care Act 2015.

Occupational Health & Safety Act 2004
Policies and procedures provide guidance for safety in the workplace. 
Designated work-groups have been established and health and 
safety representatives are elected. OH&S incidents are recorded 
and monitored and site audits undertaken. OH&S meetings occur 
quarterly. No major industrial accidents were reported during the 
year. 

Privacy
Hesse compiles with legislation relating to confidentiality and 
privacy including the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic.), Health Records 
Act 2001 (Vic.), Privacy Act 1988 (Commonwealth) and Privacy & 
Data Protection 2014 (Vic.). Policies ensure that personal health 
information remains confidential, secure and accessible under FOI 
guidelines.

Subsequent Impacts
There were no events subsequent to 30th June 2021 that would 
significantly effect Hesse’s operations in subsequent years.

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED  
UNDER LEGISLATION 

Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012 (Vic).
Hesse is compliant with obligations under the Public Interests 
Disclosures Act 2012 (Vic). Protected disclosures may be made to the 
CEO or the Disclosures Coordinator DHHS on 1300 131 431 or public.
interest.disclosures@dffh.vic.gov.au. No disclosures were made.

Local Jobs First Act 2003
In 2020-21 there were no contracts requiring disclosure under the 
‘Local Jobs First Policy’.

Gender Equality Act 2020
The Gender Equality Act 2020 (the “Act”) commenced in March 
2021 and is the first of its kind in Australia. The Act was developed 
in response to the 2016 Royal Commission into Family Violence which 
showed that Victoria needs to address gender inequality in order to 
reduce family violence and all forms of violence against women. The 
objectives of the Act are to:

• promote, encourage and facilitate the achievement of gender 
equality and improvement in the status of women

• support the identification and elimination of systemic causes of 
gender inequality in policy, programs and delivery of services in 
workplaces and communities

• recognise that gender inequality may be compounded by 
other forms of disadvantage or discrimination that a person 
may experience on the basis of Aboriginality, age, disability, 
ethnicity, gender identity, race, religion, sexual orientation and 
other attributes

• redress disadvantage, address stigma, stereotyping, prejudice 
and violence, and accommodate persons of different genders by 
way of structural change

• enhance economic and social participation by persons of 
different genders

• further promote the right to equality set out in the Charter of 
Human Rights and Responsibilities and the Convention on the 
Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women

Hesse Rural Health are committed to the implementation of the 
Act, and aim to develop, submit and publish a Gender Equality 
Action Plan (GEAP) by December 2021. To inform the strategies and 
measures of the GEAP we will conduct a workplace gender audit 
that analyses workforce data from payroll and Human Resources, 
employee experience data from the Victorian public sector’s annual 
employee opinion survey and intersectionality data where available. 
We will conduct a gender impact assessment of policies, programs 
and services that are new or up for review and have a direct and 
significant impact on the public. As part of this assessment we will 
review programs such as grants and public events, services such as 
public infrastructure development and community development and 
policies such as equal access and community engagement policies.
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Details in respect of the items listed below have been retained 
by Hesse Rural Health Service and are available to the relevant 
Ministers, Members of Parliament and the public on request (subject 
to the freedom of information requirements, if applicable:

• Declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly completed 
by all relevant officers;

• Details of shares, held by senior officers as nominee or held 
beneficially;

• Details of publications produces by the entity about itself, 
including annual Aboriginal cultural safety reports and plans, 
and how these can be obtained;

• Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies 
charged by the Health Service;

• Details of any major external reviews carried out on the Health 
Services

• Details of major research and development activities undertaken 
by the Health Service that are not otherwise covered either 
in the report of operations or in a document that contains the 

Additional Information Available on Request 
financial statements and the report of operations;

• Details of overseas visits undertaken including a summary of the 
objectives and the outcomes of each visit;

• Details of promotional, public relations and marketing activities 
undertaken by the Health Service to develop community 
awareness of the Health Service and its services; 

• Details of assessments and measures undertaken to improve 
the occupational health and safety of employees; A general 
statement on industrial relations with in the Health Service and 
details of time lost through industrial accidents and disputes,  
which is not otherwise detailed in the report of operations;

• A list of major committees sponsored by the Health Service, 
including any Aboriginal advisory or governance committees, 
the purpose of each committee and the extent to which those 
purposes have been achieved.

• Details off all consultancies and contractors including 
consultants/contractors engaged, services provided, and 
expenditure committed for each engagement.

Consultancies: (valued at $10,000 or greater) Total 
Approved 

Project Fee 
(Exc GST)

Expenditure 
2020-2021

(Exc GST)

Future
Expenditure

(Exc GST)Consultant Purpose of 
Consultancy

Start 
Date

End 
Date

Brooker Consulting Recruitment: Chief 
Executive Officer

Jul. 2020 Nov. 2020 $21,000 $29,110 $0

In 2020-2021, there was one consultancy where the total fees payable to the consultant was $10,000 or greater. The total expenditure 
incurred during 2020-2021 in relation to this consultancy was $29,110 (Exc GST). Details of individual consultancies can be viewed at 
www.hesseruralhealth.org.au. In 2020-2021, there was one consultancy where the total fees payable to the consultant was less than 
$10,000. The total expenditure incurred during 2020-2021 in relation to this consultancy is $8,100 (Ecx GST).

Occupational Health & Safety Statistics 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

Number of reported hazards / incidents for the year per 100 full time equivalent staff 
members. 64.07 50.07 35.38

The number of lost time standard WorkCover claims for the year per 100 full time 
equivalent staff members.

4.75 8.35 5.06

The average cost per WorkCover claim for the year $20,963 $451,377 $245,293

High Quality and Safe Care Key Performance Measures Target Outcome

Infection prevention and control

Compliance with the Hand Hygiene Australia program 83% 90%

Percentage of healthcare workers immunised for influenza 90% 98%

Patient experience

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – percentage of positive patient experience responses 95% No Surveys 
conducted in 
2020-2021

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey – percentage of very positive responses to questions on 
discharge care

75% No Surveys 
conducted in 
2020-2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
Hesse Rural Health encourages supporting social enterprises under the Social Procurement Framework established by the State of 
Victoria. To that end, we engage Indigenous, disability, and local social enterprises on a regular basis to provide materials and services 
to our organisation.

Environmental Impacts & Energy Usage

2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

Energy Use 849 442 434

Electricity (MWh) 2.5 2 4

Liquefied Petroleum Gas (kL) 6.85 8.86 237.75

Carbon emissions (thousand tonnes of CO2e)

Electricity 0.44 0.45 0.46

Natural Gas 0.13 0.12 0.02

Liquefied Petroleum Gas 0.01  0.01 0.37 

Total Emissions 0.71 0.58 0.85

Water use (millions litres)    

Potable Water 5.5 7.01 6.63

Factors Influencing Environmental Impacts

2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

Floor area (m2) 6,094 6,094 6,094

Separations 20 44 52

In-Patient Bed Days 332 199 478

Aged Care Bed Nights 19,745 19,919 19,352
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The following sections summarise Hesse Rural Health’s assessment of maturity against the requirements of the Asset Management Accountability 
Framework (AMAF). The AMAF is a non-prescriptive, devolved accountability model of asset management that requires compliance with 41 
mandatory requirements. These requirements can be found on the DTF website (https://www.dtf.vic.gov.au/infrastructure-investment/asset-
management-accountability-framework). 

The Hesse Rural Health target maturity rating is ‘competence’, meaning systems and processes fully in place, consistently applied and 
systematically meeting the AMAF requirement, including a continuous improvement process to expand system performance above AMAF 
minimum requirements. 

Target Overall

Legend

Status Scale

Not Applicable N/A

Innocence 0

Awareness 1

Developing 2

Competence 3

Optimising 4

Unassessed U/A

Leadership and Accountability (requirements 1-19)

Hesse Rural Health did not comply with some requirements in the areas of allocating asset management responsibility and other requirement. 
There is no material non-compliance reported in this category. A plan for improvement is in place to improve the Hesse Rural Health’s maturity 
rating in these areas. 

Planning (requirements 20-23)

Hesse Rural Health has not met or exceeded its target maturity level in this category. There is no material non-compliance reported in this 
category. A plan for improvement is in place to improve the Hesse Rural Health’s maturity rating in these areas.

Acquisition (requirements 24 and 25) 

Hesse Rural Health has met or exceeded its target maturity level in this category.

Operation (requirements 26-40)

Hesse Rural Health did not comply with some requirements in the areas of monitoring and preventative action and information management. 
Monitoring and preventative action is an area of material non-compliance. Hesse Rural Health is developing a plan for improvement to 
establish processes to proactively identify potential asset performance failures and identify options for preventive action.

Disposal (requirement 41)

Hesse Rural Health has met its target maturity level in this category.

ASSET MANAGEMENT 
ACCOUNTABILITY FRAMEWORK
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PERFORMANCE DATA
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
(Refer to consolidated Financial Statements for details) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Operating Results * $106,013 $311,910 $133,531 ($106,003) $247,749

Total Revenue $12,685,618 $11,879,232 $11,429,448 $10,222,482 $11,013,259

Total Expenses ($13,318,587) ($12,551,439) ($11,806,600) ($11,151,695) ($11,618,766)

Net Result from Transactions ($632,969) ($672,207) ($377,152) ($929,208) ($605,506)

Total Other Economic Flows $931,877 ($17,068) ($129,151) $278,004 $16,291

Net Result $298,908 ($689,275) ($506,303) ($651,204) ($589,216)

Total Assets $25,201,030 $23,009,455 $22,317,803 $19,792,109 $18,638,397

Total Liabilities $13,111,684 $11,215,389 $10,255,654 $9,643,107 $9,223,785

Net Assets / Total Equity $12,089,346 $11,263,360 $12,062,149 $10,149,002 $9,414,612

* The Operating result is the result for which the health service is monitored in its Statement of Priorities

FINANCIAL RECONCILIATION
of the ‘Net Result from Transactions’
and  ‘Net Operating Result’ 2020-21

Net Operating Result * $106,013

Capital Purpose Income $149,769

Specific Income N/A

COVID-19 State Supply Arrangements - 
Assets received free of charge or for nil 
consideration under the State Supply

$148,226

State supply items consumed up to 30 June 
2021

N/A

Assets provided free of charge $21,671

Assets received free of charge $245,000

Expenditure for Capital Purpose $61,304

Depreciation and Amortisation ($1,073,405)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets N/A

Finance Costs (Other) $956

Net Results from Transactions ($632,969)

* The Net Operating Result is the result which the health 
service is monitored against in its Statement of Priorities.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR Target
2020-21 
Result

Operating Result $0 $106,013

Average Number of Days to Paying 
Trade Creditors

60 Days 19

Average Number of Days to receiving 
Patient Fee Debtors

60 Days 40

Public and Private WIES1 Activity 
Performance to Target

100% 20%

Adjusted Current Asset Ratio 0.7 or 3% 
improvement 
from health 
service base 
target

0.72

Forecast number of days a health 
service can maintain its operations with 
unrestricted available cash (based on 
end of year forecast)

14 days 7.4

Actual number of days a health service 
can maintain its operations with 
unrestrictive available cash, measured 
on the last day of each month

14 days 14.4

Variance between forecast and actual 
Net result from transactions (NRFT) 
for the current financial year ending 30 
June.

Variance ≤ 
$250,000

Variance
$419,814

INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY
The total ICT expenditure incurred during 2020-2021 is $375,838 (excluding GST) as detailed below.

Business as Usual Expense (exc GST) $361,059

Non-Business as Usual Expense (exc GST)

Operational Expenditure $0

Capital Expenditure $14,779

Total: $375,838
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ADMITTED PATIENTS

SEPARATIONS 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Acute 20 44 52 63 63

Non-Acute 0 0 0 0 0

Same Day 0 0 0 1 2

Total Hospital Separations 20 44 52 64 65

WIES (Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separations)

WEIS Public 28.43 51.34 88 108 73

WEIS Private, DVA & TAC 34.31 38.38 18 5 90

PATIENT BED DAYS

Acute 332 525 601 662 1,010

Non-Acute 0 0 0 0 0

Same Day 0 0 0 1 2

Total Hospital Patient Days 332 525 601 663 1,012

NON-ADMITTED PATIENTS 

2021 2020 2019 2018

Emergency Medical Treatment 28 102 194 144

Community Contact Hours (Home and Community 
Care, Commonwealth Home Support and Small Rural 
Health Service funded) *

21,596 32,493 29,644 26,985

District Nursing 7,523 6,954 6,220 5,381

Domiciliary Midwifery 240 253 160 139

Community Nursing 1,881 1,509 2,025 1,801

Health Promotion 791 847 776 687

Physiotherapy 597 680 609 633

Occupational Therapy 1,454 1,573 1,294 1,431

Dietitian 170 198 105 104

Diabetes Education 137 241 114 96

Social Support Program * 9,392 15,036 18,234 16,642

Other 90 75 107 71

* Hours of service delivery reduced for these programs due to the impact of COVID-19. 
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AGED CARE OCCUPANCY

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Bed Days (Consolidated) 19,745 19,919 19,352 18,287 19,431

Separations (Consolidated) 22 16 25 25 13
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Board of Hesse Rural Health Service 

Opinion I have audited the consolidated financial report of Hesse Rural Health Service (the health 
service) and its controlled entities (together the consolidated entity), which comprises the: 

• consolidated entity and health service balance sheets as at 30 June 2021 
• consolidated entity and health service comprehensive operating statements for the year 

then ended 
• consolidated entity and health service statements of changes in equity for the year then 

ended 
• consolidated entity and health service cash flow statements for the year then ended 
• notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies 
• board member’s, accountable officer's and chief finance & accounting officer’s 

declaration. 

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
positions of the consolidated entity and the health service as at 30 June 2021 and their 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial 
reporting requirements of Part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable 
Australian Accounting Standards. 

Basis for 
Opinion 

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the 
Australian Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and those 
standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my 
report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are independent 
of the health service and the consolidated entity in accordance with the ethical requirements 
of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 
Victoria. My staff and I have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the Code.  

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion. 

Board’s 
responsibilities 
for the 
financial 
report 

The Board of the health service is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial 
Management Act 1994, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the health service and 
the consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is 
inappropriate to do so. 
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Auditor’s 
responsibilities 
for the audit of 
the financial 
report 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the health service and the consolidated 
entity’s internal control 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the Board's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the health 
service and the consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the health 
service and the consolidated entity to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation 

• obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the health service and consolidated entity to 
express an opinion on the financial report. I remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the health service and the consolidated 
entity. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion. 

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that I identify during my audit. 

 
 
 
MELBOURNE 
30 September 2021 

Dominika Ryan 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 

 



HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

BOARD MEMBER’S ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S AND
CHIEF FINANCE & ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S DECLARATION

We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day. 

MS K. TAYLOR MRS C. BROCK MR S. WIGHT
Chairperson (on behalf of the Board) Chief Executive Officer Chief Finance & Accounting Officer

Winchelsea Winchelsea Winchelsea
Dated: 15th September, 2021 Dated: 15th September, 2021 Dated: 15th September, 2021

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

We further state that, in our opinion the information set out in the comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement 
and accompanying notes, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2021 and the financial position of Hesse Rural Health Service and the 
Consolidated Entity at 30 June 2021.

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

The attached consolidated financial statements for Hesse Rural Health Service and the Consolidated Entity have been prepared in accordance with Direction 5.2 of the 
Standing Directions of the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial Management Act 1994 , applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards 
including Interpretations, and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

Board member's, accountable officer's and chief finance & accounting officer's declaration

Page 1
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Parent Parent Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2021 2020 2021 2020

$ $ $ $
Revenue and Income from transactions
Operating activities 2.1 9,644,386         8,952,661       12,663,857     11,818,059      
Non-operating activities 2.1 20,196              41,584            21,761            61,173             
Total revenue and income from transactions 9,664,582         8,994,245       12,685,618     11,879,232      

Expenses from transactions
Employee expenses 3.1 (7,399,238)       (7,110,352)      (9,400,986)     (8,917,142)       
Supplies & consumables 3.1 (259,055)          (115,572)         (573,437)         (448,918)          
Depreciation 3.1 (697,361)          (688,095)         (1,073,405)     (1,066,090)       
Other operating expenses 3.1 (1,569,307)       (1,397,372)      (2,270,759)     (2,119,289)       
Total expenses from transactions (9,924,961)       (9,311,391)      (13,318,587)   (12,551,439)     

(260,379)          (317,146)         (632,969)         (672,207)          

3.4 886,313            36,819            886,313          36,819             
3.4 -                        (19,074)           -                      (28,722)            
3.4 45,564              (25,165)           45,564            (25,165)            

931,877            (7,420)             931,877          (17,068)            

671,498            (324,566)         298,908          (689,275)          

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Changes in physical asset revaluation surplus 4.1 (f) 527,078            -                      527,078          -                        

Total other comprehensive income 527,078            -                      527,078          -                        
Comprehensive result for the year 1,198,576         (324,566)         825,986          (689,275)          

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

Other economic flows included in net result

Net (loss) on financial instruments 

Total other economic flows included in net result

Net result for the year

Net gain on non-financial assets

Net result from transactions - net operating balance

Other gain/(loss) from other economic flows

Page 2
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Parent Entity Parent Entity Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2021 2020 2021 2020

$ $ $ $

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6.2 2,865,932         2,782,291       7,095,060       6,527,893        
Receivables and contract assets 5.1 1,063,573         286,284          1,093,236       306,307           
Prepaid expenses 37,557              46,949            37,557            46,949             

Total Current Assets 3,967,061         3,115,524       8,225,853       6,881,149        

Non-Current Assets
Receivables and contract assets 5.1 491,233            485,628          491,233          485,628           
Investment properties 4.3 1,525,000         976,065          1,525,000       976,065           
Property, plant & equipment 4.1 10,005,506       9,637,940       14,958,944     14,666,613      

Total Non-Current Assets 12,021,739       11,099,633     16,975,177     16,128,306      

TOTAL ASSETS 15,988,800       14,215,157     25,201,030     23,009,455      

Current Liabilities
Payables and contract liabilities 5.2 517,904            891,677          1,049,615       967,131           
Borrowings 6.1 87,224              71,118            87,224            71,118             
Employee benefits 3.2 1,155,867         1,288,077       1,840,492       2,042,278        
Other liabilities 5.3 5,185,384         4,158,154       9,556,082       8,134,862        

Total Current Liabilities 6,946,379         6,409,026       12,533,413     11,215,389      

Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 6.1 117,376            95,909            117,376          95,909             
Employee benefits 3.2 287,321            271,074          460,895          434,797           

Total Non-Current Liabilities 404,697            366,983          578,271          530,706           
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,351,076         6,776,009       13,111,684     11,746,095      
NET ASSETS 8,637,724         7,439,148       12,089,346     11,263,360      

EQUITY
Property, plant & equipment revaluation surplus 4,304,272         3,777,194       7,898,888       7,371,810        
Contributed capital 3,527,113         3,527,113       4,514,616       4,514,616        
Accumulated surpluses/(deficits) 806,339            134,841          (324,158)         (623,066)          

TOTAL EQUITY 8,637,724         7,439,148       12,089,346     11,263,360      

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note

 Property, Plant 
& Equipment 
Revaluation 

Surplus 
 Contributed 

Capital 

 Accumulated 
Surpluses / 

(Deficits) Total
Consolidated $ $ $ $

Balance at 30 June 2019 7,371,810         4,514,616       175,723          12,062,149      
Effect of adoption of AASB15,16 & 1058. -                        -                      (109,514)         (109,514)          
Restated balance at 1 July 2019 7,371,810         4,514,616       66,209            11,952,635      

-                        -                      (689,275)         (689,275)          
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                        -                      -                      -                        
Balance at 30 June 2020 4.1(f) 7,371,810         4,514,616       (623,066)         11,263,360      

-                        -                      298,908          298,908           
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 527,078            -                      -                      527,078           

Balance at 30 June 2021 4.1(f) 7,898,888         4,514,616       (324,158)         12,089,346      

Note

 Property, Plant 
& Equipment 
Revaluation 

Surplus 
 Contributed 

Capital 

 Accumulated 
Surpluses / 

(Deficits) Total
Parent $ $ $ $

Balance at 30 June 2019 3,777,194         3,527,113       568,920          7,873,227        
-                        -                      (109,514)         (109,514)          

Restated balance at 1 July 2019 3,777,194         3,527,113       459,406          7,763,713        

-                        -                      (324,566)         (324,566)          
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                        -                      -                      -                        
Balance at 30 June 2020 4.1(f) 3,777,194         3,527,113       134,841          7,439,148        

-                        -                      671,498          671,498           
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 527,078            -                      -                      527,078           

Balance at 30 June 2021 4.1(f) 4,304,272         3,527,113       806,339          8,637,724        

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Net Result for the year

HESSE RURAL HEALTH 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Effect of adoption of AASB15,16 & 1058.

Net Result for the year

Net Result for the year

Net Result for the year
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Parent Entity Parent Entity Consolidated Consolidated
Note 2021 2020 2021 2020

$ $ $ $
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Operating grants from government - State 4,361,392         4,085,659       4,361,392       4,085,659        
Operating grants from government - Commonwealth 3,393,293         3,175,164       5,495,193       5,252,818        
Capital grants from government - State 149,769            105,590          149,769          105,590           
Patient and resident fees received 803,850            823,478          1,672,542       1,690,992        
Donations and bequests received 250,379            42,279            250,379          42,379             
GST received from ATO 157,677            154,780          157,677          154,780           
Interest received 20,196              41,584            21,761            61,173             
Other receipts 150,770            849,145          837,256          768,283           
Total receipts 9,287,326         9,277,679       12,945,969     12,161,674      

Employee expenses paid (7,469,637)       (7,123,620)      (9,531,110)     (8,931,405)       
Payments for supplies & consumables (531,099)          (434,466)         (548,678)         (441,388)          
Finance costs (3,250)               (2,663)             (3,250)             (2,663)              
Payment for share of rural health alliance (266,624)          (288,418)         (266,624)         (288,418)          
Other payments (886,018)          (957,676)         (2,371,750)     (2,011,152)       
Total payments (9,156,628)       (8,806,842)      (12,721,412)   (11,675,026)     

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 8.1 130,697            470,837          224,557          486,649           

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (464,293)          (355,578)         (962,992)         (389,750)          
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 23,182              15,863            23,182            15,863             
Capital Donations and Bequests Received 245,000            -                      245,000          -                        
Additions to investment properties (36,190)            -                      (36,190)           -                        

(232,301)          (339,715)         (731,000)         (373,887)          

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Repayment of borrowings (70,992)            (6,781)             (70,992)           (6,781)              
Receipt of monies held in trust 212,257            218,157          212,257          218,157           
Receipt of accommodation bonds 1,628,063         1,074,472       3,340,675       3,062,472        
Repayment of accommodation bonds & resident loan obligations (1,584,085)       (47,774)           (2,408,330)     (2,167,486)       
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 185,243            1,238,074       1,073,610       1,106,362        

83,640              1,369,196       567,167          1,219,123        

2,782,292         1,413,096       6,527,893       5,308,769        

6.2 2,865,932         2,782,292       7,095,060       6,527,893        

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents Held 

Net Cash Flows used in Investing Activities 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 30 JUNE 2021

HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: Basis of preparation

Note 1.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis (refer to Note 8.9 Economic Dependency).

Note 1.2 Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

Note 2: Funding delivery of our services
Note 3: The cost of delivering our services
Note 4:  Key assets to support service delivery
Note 5:  Other assets and liabilities
Note 6:  How we finance our operations.
Note 8:  Other Disclosures.

In March 2020 a state of emergency was declared in Victoria due to the global coronavirus pandemic, known as COVID-19. Since this 
date, to contain the spread of COVID-19 and prioritise the health and safety of our community, Hesse Rural Health was required to 
comply with various directions announced by the Commonwealth and State Governments, which in turn, has continued to impact the 
way in which Hesse Rural Health operates.

- introducing restrictions on non-essential visitors
- greater utilisation of telehealth services
- implementing reduced visitor hours
- implementing work from home arrangements, where appropriate.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars.

All amounts shown in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar, unless otherwise stated. Minor discrepancies in 
tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.

Further information on the impacts of the pandemic are disclosed at:

Hesse Rural Health introduced a range of measures in both the prior and current year, including:	

The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Hesse Rural Health Service and its controlled entities on 
September 15, 2021.

As restrictions have eased towards the end of the financial year Hesse Rural Health Service has been able to revise some measures 
where appropriate including easing restrictions on visitors, and return to face-to-face social support programs.

These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Hesse Rural Health and its controlled 
entity for the period ending 30 June 2021.  The purpose of the report is to provide users with information about the Health Service's 
stewardship of resources entrusted to it.

Hesse Rural Health Service operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital 
Funds. The Hesse Rural Health Service's Capital and Specific Purpose Funds include unspent donations and receipts from fund-raising 
activities conducted solely in respect of these funds.

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards, which include interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).  They are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of 
Financial Statements.

The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department of Treasury and 
Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Assistant Treasurer.

This section explains the basis of preparing the financial statements and identifies the key accounting estimates and judgements.

The Health Service is a not-for profit entity and therefore applies the additional Aus paragraphs applicable to “not-for-profit” Health 
Services under the Australian Accounting Standards.  Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has 
concluded would result in financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. 
Apart from the changes in accounting policies, standards and interpretations as noted below, material accounting policies adopted in 
the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those adopted in the previous period.

The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
accrual basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when they satisfy the definitions and recognition 
criteria for those items, that is, they are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or 
paid.
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 30 JUNE 2021

Note 1.3 Abbreviations and terminology used in the financial statements

AASB
AASs
DH
DTF
FMA
FRD
SD

VAGO
WIES

SWARH

Note 1.4 Principles of consolidation

Note 1.5 Joint arrangements

Note 1.6 Key accounting estimates and judgements

Australian Accounting Standards, which include Interpretations
Department of Health
Department of Treasury and Finance
Financial Management Act 1994
Financial Reporting Direction

Interests in joint arrangements are accounted for by recognising in Hesse Rural Health Service’s financial statements, its share of 
assets and liabilities and any revenue and expenses of such joint arrangements.

Transactions between segments within Hesse Rural Health Service have been eliminated to reflect the extent of Hesse Rural Health 
Service’s operations as a group.

Standing Direction
Victorian Auditor General’s Office
Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separation
South West Alliance of Rural Health

Reference

Management make estimates and judgements when preparing the financial statements.

Hesse Rural Health Service is a Member of the South West Alliance of Rural Health (SWARH) and retains joint control over the 
arrangement, which it has classified as a joint operation.

Details of the joint arrangements are set out in Note 8.8.

Details of the controlled entities are set out in Note 8.7.

The following table sets out the common abbreviations used throughout the financial statements:

The accounting policies and significant management judgements and estimates used, and any changes thereto, are identified at the 
beginning of each section where applicable and are disclosed in further detail throughout the accounting policies.

The financial statements include the assets and liabilities of Hesse Rural Health Service and its controlled entity as a whole as at the 
end of the financial year and the consolidated results and cash flows for the year.

The parent entity is not disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements.

Hesse Rural Health Service consolidate the results of its controlled entity from the date on which the health service gains control until 
the date the health service ceases to have control. Where dissimilar accounting policies are adopted by the entity and their effect is 
considered material, adjustments are made to ensure consistent policies are adopted in these financial statements.

Revisions to key estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that are affected by 
the revision.

The consolidated financial statements of Hesse Rural Health Service include Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. as at 
30 June 2021.

These estimates and judgements are based on historical knowledge and best available current information and assume any 
reasonable expectation of future events. Actual results may differ.

Title
Australian Accounting Standards Board
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 30 JUNE 2021

Note 1.7 Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

Adoption Date
Reporting periods 
on or after 1 
January 2023

Reporting periods 
on or after 1 
January 2022.

Reporting periods 
on or after 1 
January 2022.

Reporting periods 
on or after 1 
January 2021.

Note 1.8 Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Note 1.9 Reporting Entity 

Its principal address is:
8 Gosney Street
WINCHELSEA VIC 3241

The financial statements include all the controlled activities of Hesse Rural Health Service. 

Impact
Adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact.

Adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact.

Adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact.

Adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact.

Standard
AASB 17: Insurance Contracts

Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

AASB 2020-1: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
– Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

AASB 2020-3: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
– Annual Improvements 2018-2020 and Other Amendments

AASB 2020-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
– Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2

An assessment of accounting standards and interpretations issued by the AASB that are not yet mandatorily applicable to Hesse Rural 
Health Service and their potential impact when adopted in future periods is outlined below:

A description of the nature of Hesse Rural Health's operations and its principal activities is included in the report of operations, which 
does not form part of these financial statements.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are 
recoverable from, or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating cash flow.

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from 
the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In this case the GST payable is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 
part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, 
or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet. 
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HHEESSSSEE  RRUURRAALL  HHEEAALLTTHH  SSEERRVVIICCEE
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS

FFOORR  TTHHEE  YYEEAARR  EENNDDEEDD  3300  JJUUNNEE  22002211

Note 2:   Funding delivery of our services

Structure
2.1 Income from Transactions
2.2 Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
2.3 Other income

Telling the COVID-19 story

Key judgements and estimates

Note 2.1:  Revenue and income from transactions Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020

Operating Activities $ $

5,411 -
Government grants (Commonwealth) - Operating 5,495,193 5,252,818
Patient and Resident Fees 1,763,321 1,674,842
SWARH revenue from jointly controlled assets 430,123 454,541
Commercial activities 30,911 35,858

7,724,959 7,418,059

Government grants (State) - Operating 4,120,988 3,942,147
Government grants (State) - Capital 42,448 82,999
Government grants (Commonwealth) - Operating 143,160 -
Other Capital purpose income 107,321 22,591
Assets received free of charge or for nominal consideration 365,709 34,883
Other Revenue from Operating Activities (including non-capital donations) 159,272 317,380

4,938,898 4,400,000

12,663,857 11,818,059

Non-operating Activities

Interest 21,761 61,173
Total revenue from Non-Operating Activies 21,761 61,173

Total revenue and income from transactions 12,685,618 11,879,232

Total revenue and income from operating activities

Income from other sources

Hesse Rural Health's overall objective is to deliver programs and services that support and enhance the wellbeing of all Victorians.

To enable the health service to fulfil its objective it receives income based on parliamentary appropriations.  The health service also receives income from 
the supply of services.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Due to the restrictions in place to reduce the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, the health service was unable to perform a Commonwealth funded social 
support program from April to December 2020.  The portion of funding received ($118,232) relating to this unperformed service obligation has been 
recognised as contract liabilities - income received in advance (note 5.2). 

Key judgements and estimates

Identifying performance obligations

Determining timing of revenue recognition 

Determining time of capital grant income recognition

If this criteria is not met, funding is recognised immediately in the net result from operations.

The Health Service applies significant judgement to determine when a performance obligation has been satisfied and the 
transaction price that is to be allocated to each performance obligation. A performance obligation is either satisfied at a 
point in time or over time.

Revenue recognised to fund the delivery of our services during the financial year was not materially impacted by the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic 
because the health service’s response was limited to implementing COVID-19 safe practices.

The health service received additional Commonwealth supplementary payments linked to resident numbers of $140,499 (2020 - $72,675), to cover the 
additional costs of caring for residents during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Hesse Rural Health received $361,490 in State funding to compensate for reductions in revenue and to cover certain direct and indirect COVID-19 related 
costs, of which $148,226 has been recognised as revenue and is included in Note 2.1 Other Sources of income - Government grants (State) -operating.  
The remaining $213,264 is subject to recall and is included in Note 5.2 Payables and contract liabilities.

The Commonwealth also provided an Aged Care retention bonus payable to the health service staff employed in caring for Aged Care residents.  This 
amounted to $143,160 and was paid as an allowance to eligible employees (note 2.1).

This section contains the following key judgements and estimates:

The Health Service applies significant judgement to determine when its obligation to construct an asset is satisfied. Costs 
incurred is used to measure the health service’s progress as this is deemed to be the most accurate reflection of the stage of 
completion.

Government grants (State) - Operating

Description

Hesse Rural Health applies significant judgment when reviewing the terms and conditions of funding agreements and 
contracts to determine whether they contain sufficiently specific and enforceable performance obligations.

If this criteria is met, the contract/funding agreement is treated as a contract with a customer, requiring the Health Service to 
recognise revenue as or when the health service transfers promised goods or services to customers.

Other sources of income

Total other sources of income
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HHEESSSSEE  RRUURRAALL  HHEEAALLTTHH  SSEERRVVIICCEE
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Government operating grants 

- Identifies each performance obligation relating to the revenue
- recognises a contract liability for its obligations under the agreement
- recognises revenue as it satisfied its performance obligations, at the time or over time when services are rendered.

- recognises income immediately in profit or loss as the difference between the initial carrying amount of the asset and the related amount.

Capital grants 

Patient and Resident Fees

The Department of Health and Human Services makes some payments on behalf of health services as follows:

The types of government grants recognised under AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers includes:

Government grant
Commonwealth funding for HACC programs.

Performance obligation
Revenue is recognised monthly as the programs are run and the contact visits are being met. These 
performance obligations have been selected as they align with the terms and conditions of the funding 
provided.  

Commonwealth funding for residential aged care (bed subsidies). Revenue is recognised monthly based on the actual number of bed days provided and assessed ACFI rates for 
each resident.

Income is recognised progressively as the asset is constructed which aligns with Hesse Health Service’s obligation to construct the asset. The progressive 
percentage of costs incurred is used to recognise income, as this most accurately reflects the stage of completion. 

Supplier

Victorian Managed 
Insurance Authority

Department of Health

Where Hesse Rural Health receives a capital grant, it recognises a liability for the excess of the initial carrying amount of the financial asset received over 
any related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liabilities, financial instruments, provisions, revenue or contract liabilities arising from a contract 
with a customer) recognised under other Australian Accounting Standards. 

Where the contract is not enforceable and/or does not have sufficiently specific performance obligations, in accordance with AASB1058 Income for not-for 
profit entities, the health service:

Patient and resident fees are charges that can be levied on patients for some services they receive. Patient and resident fees are recognised at a point in 
time when the performance obligation, the provision of services, is satisfied, except where the patient and resident fees relate to accommodation charges. 
Accommodation charges are calculated daily and are recognised over time, to reflect the period accommodation is provided.

Non-cash contributions from the Department of Health and Human Services

Description

The Department of Health purchases non-medical indemnity insurance for Hesse Rural Health Service which is paid directly to the Victorian Managed Insurance Authority. To record 
this contribution, such payments are recognised as income with a matching expense in the net result from transactions.

Long Service Leave (LSL) revenue is recognised upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability in line with the long service leave funding arrangements set out in the relevant 
Department of Health Hospital Circular.

- recognises related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liabilities, financial instruments, provisions, revenue or contract liabilities from a contract 
with a customer), and

- recognises the asset received in accordance with the recognition requirements of other applicable Accounting Standards (for example, AASB 9, AASB 16, 
AASB 116 and AASB 138)

How we recognise revenue and income from transactions

To recognise revenue,Hesse Rural Health Service assesses whether there is a contract that is enforceable and has sufficiently specific performance 
obligations in accordance with AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

When both these conditions are satisfied, the health service:
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Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020

$ $

245,000 10,000
88,460 -
32,249 24,883

365,709 34,883

Donations and bequests

Personal protective equipment

Contributions

Volunteer services

Note 2.3:  Other income Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020

$ $

Interest 21,761 61,173
21,761 61,173

The exception to this policy is when an asset is received from another government agency or department as a consequence of a restructuring of 
administrative arrangements, in which case the asset will be recognised at its carrying value in the financial statements of Hesse Rural Health Service as a 
capital contribution transfer.  

Hesse Rural Health Service recognises income immediately in the profit or loss as the difference between the initial fair value of the asset and the related 
amounts. 

In order to meet the State of Victoria’s health system supply needs during the COVID-19 pandemic, the purchasing of essential personal protective 
equipment (PPE) and other essential plant and equipment was centralised.

Generally, the State Supply Arrangement stipulates that Health Purchasing Victoria (trading as HealthShare Victoria) sources, secures and agrees terms for 
the purchase of PPE. The purchases are funded by the Department of Health, while Monash Health takes delivery and distributes an allocation of the 
products to health services. Hesse Rural Health received these resources free of charge and recognised them as income.

Note 2.2:  Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal 
consideration.

Interest Income
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes in account the effective yield of the financial asset, which allocates interest over the 
relevant period.

Hesse Rural Health has a number of volunteers who generously contribute their time to support staff led program and service activities. Activities 
undertaken by volunteers include friendly visiting to aged residents, assistance with small group programs, transportation of clients and residents on outings 
or to appointments, pastoral care and consumer representation on advisory committees. The volunteer program provides opportunities for broader 
community and social engagement. Though highly valued, these contributions would not have been purchased had they not been donated, and Hesse 
Rural Health does not depend on volunteers to deliver its services.

On initial recognition of the asset, Hesse Rural Health Service recognises related amounts being contributions by owners, lease liabilities, financial 
instruments, provisions and revenue or contract liabilities arising from a contract with a customer. 

Hesse Rural Health Service may receive assets for nil or nominal consideration to further its objectives. The assets are recognised at their fair value when 
Hesse Rural Health Service obtains control over the asset, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions. 

Cash donations and gifts

Other services
Total fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration.

Personal protective equipment

How we recognise the fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration 

Donations and bequests are generally recognised as income upon receipt (which is when Hesse Rural Health Service usually obtained control of the asset) 
as they do not contain sufficiently specific and enforceable performance obligations. Where sufficiently specific and enforceable performance obligations 
exist, revenue is recorded as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

How we recognise other income
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HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note 3: The Cost of delivering services

Structure
3.1 Expenses from transactions
3.2 Employee benefits in the balance sheet
3.3 Superannuation
3.4 Other Economic Flows

Telling the COVID-19 story

Key judgements and estimates

Key judgements and estimates

Note 3.1: Expenses from transactions Consolidated Consolidated
2021 2020

$ $
Salaries and Wages 8,447,701 7,871,321
On-costs 714,781 722,021
Agency Expenses 13,584 143,169
Fee for Service Medical Officer Expenses 64,011 77,059
Workcover Premium 160,909 103,572

Total Employee Expenses 9,400,986 8,917,142

Drug Supplies 10,068 12,495
Medical and Surgical Supplies 234,834 116,773
Other Supplies and Consumables 328,535 319,650

Total Supplies and Consumables 573,437 448,918

Finance Costs 3,250 2,663
Total Finance Costs 3,250 2,663

Domestic Supplies 209,022 206,670
Patient Transport 5,084 12,434
Fleet Expenses 79,864 86,172
Insurance 23,832 23,834
IT Expenses 361,059 361,553
Other Administrative Expenses 1,111,866 898,810

Total Other Administrative Expenses 1,790,727 1,589,473

Fuel, Light, Power and Water 179,858 177,014
Repairs and Maintenance 179,324 269,391
Maintenance Contracts 31,537 42,264
Medical Indemnity Insurance 24,759 7,530
Expenditure for Capital Purposes 61,304 30,954

Total Other Operating Expenses 476,782 527,153

12,245,182 11,485,349

Depreciation (refer Note 4.2) 1,073,405 1,066,090
Total Depreciation 1,073,405 1,066,090

Total Expenses from Transactions 13,318,587 12,551,439

This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by the Hesse Rural Health in delivering services and outputs.  In Section 2, the funds that enable the provision of services were 
disclosed and in this note the costs associated with provision of services are recorded. 

Total Operating Expenses

Expenses incurred to deliver services during the financial year were not materially impacted by the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic because its response was limited to implementing 
COVID safe practices. 

Wages and salaries include the payment of the Aged Care retention bonus paid to eligible employees totalling $143,160, which was funded by the Commonwealth government.

This section contains the following key judgements and estimates:

Measuring and classifying employee benefit liabilities

Description
Hesse Rural Health applies significant judgment when measuring and classifying its employee benefit liabilities.

Employee benefit liabilities are classified as a current liability if the Health Service does not have an unconditional right to defer payment beyond 12 months. Annual leave, accrued 
days off and long service leave entitlements (for staff who have exceeded the minimum vesting period) fall into this category. 

Employee benefit liabilities are classified as a non-current liability if the Health Service has a conditional right to defer payment beyond 12 months. Long service leave entitlements 
(for staff who have not yet exceeded the minimum vesting period) fall into this category. 

The health service also applies judgement to determine when it expects its employee entitlements to be paid. With reference to historical data, if the health service does not expect 
entitlements to be paid within 12 months, the entitlement is measured at its present value. All other entitlements are measured at their nominal value.
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Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.

Employee expenses

Employee expenses include:
• wages and salaries (including fringe benefits tax, leave entitlements, termination payments);
• On-costs;
• Agency expenses;
• Fee for service medical officer expenses;
• workcover premium.

Supplies and consumables

Finance costs

Other Operating Expenses

• Fuel, light and power;
• Repairs and maintenance;
• Other administrative expenses;

Non-operating expenses

Note 3.2:   Employee benefits in the balance sheet Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

$ $
Current Provisions

Accrued Days Off
13,310 34,119
13,310 34,119

Annual Leave
795,524 764,524
127,355 123,681
922,879 888,205

Long Service Leave
148,681 153,841
580,664 782,474
729,345 936,315

Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-costs
   - Unconditional and expected to be utilised within 12 months (nominal value) 100,307 90,190
   - Unconditional and expected to be utilised after 12 months (present value) 74,651 93,450

174,958 183,639

Total Current Provisions 1,840,492 2,042,278

Non-Current Provisions

Long Service Leave (present value) 419,340 395,599
Provisions related to Employee Benefit On-costs (present value) 41,555 39,198
Total Non-Current Provisions 460,895 434,797

Total employee benefits 2,301,387 2,477,075

Supplies and services costs which are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories held for distribution are 
expensed when distributed.

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)

Finance costs include:

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (present value)

-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months (nominal value)
-Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months (present value)

• finance charges in respect of finance leases which are recognised in accordance with AASB 16 Leases.

How we recognise expenses from transactions

Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and include such things as: 

• Expenditure for capital purposes (represents expenditure related to the purchase of assets that are below the capitalisation threshold).

The Department of Health and Human Services also makes certain payments on behalf of Hesse Rural Health Service. These amounts have been brought to account as grants in 
determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and also recording the related expense.

Other non-operating expenses generally represent expenditure for outside the normal operations such as depreciation and amortisation, and assets and services provided free of charge 
or for nominal consideration.
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Employee Benefit Recognition

Provisions

Annual leave and Accrued Days off

- Nominal value – if Hesse Rural Health Service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
- Present value – if Hesse Rural Health Service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Long service leave (LSL)
Liability for LSL is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. 

The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:
- Nominal value – if Hesse Rural Health Service expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
- Present value – if Hesse Rural Health Service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Termination benefits

On-costs related to employee expense

Note 3.2 (a): Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

$ $
Unconditional Long Service Leave Entitlements 803,016 1,030,892
Annual Leave 1,024,166 977,267
Accrued Days Off 13,310 34,119
Total current employee benefits and related on-costs 1,840,492 2,042,278

Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements 460,895 434,797
Total non-current employee benefits and related on-costs 460,895 434,797

Total Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs 2,301,387 2,477,075

Carrying amount at start of year 2,477,075 2,466,173
Additional provisions recognised 769,387 956,363
Amounts incurred during the year (945,075) (945,461)
Carrying amount at end of year 2,301,387 2,477,075

Note 3.3:   Superannuation
Consol'd Consol'd Consol'd Consol'd

2021 2020 2021 2020
Defined contribution plans: $ $ $ $
First State Super 714,781 595,314 - 126,707
Total 714,781 595,314 - 126,707

Provisions are recognised when the Health Service has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured 
reliably.

The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows, 
using a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific to the provision.

Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are measured at:

Liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as 'current liabilities' because Hesse Rural Health Service does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlements of these liabilities.

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of accrued days off, annual leave and long service leave for services rendered to the reporting date as an expense during 
the period the services are delivered.

Provision for on-costs, such as payroll tax, workers compensation and superannuation are recognised separately from provisions for employee benefits.

How we recognise employee benefits

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability, even where the health service does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it 
will not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months. An unconditional right arises after a qualifying period.

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability.  Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction, except to the 
extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in estimations e.g. bond rate movements, inflation rate movements and changes in probability factors which are then recognised as other 
economic flows.

Contributions Outstanding

Employees of the Health Service are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and Hesse Rural Health contributes to defined contribution plans only. 

Superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in the comprehensive operating statement of the Health Service. 

How we recognise superannuation

The name, details and amounts that have been expensed in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by Hesse Rural Health are disclosed above.

Defined contribution superannuation plans
In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the employer contributions that are paid or payable in respect of employees 
who are members of these plans during the reporting period. Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee decides to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the 
termination of employment.

Paid Contributions
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Note 3.4:   Other economic flows Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

$ $
Insurance proceeds less impairment costs of building 531,971 -
Revaluation of investment property (note 4.3(a)) 512,745 55,000
Net Gain/(Loss) from Fair Value Adjustment of Resident loan obligations - independent living units (note 5.3) (146,576) (19,800)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property plant and equipment (11,827) 1,619
Total net gain/(loss) on non‑‑financial assets 886,313 36,819

Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables - (28,722)
Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments - (28,722)

Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service liability 45,564 (25,165)
Total other gains/(losses) from other economic flows 45,564 (25,165)

Total gains/(losses) from other economic flows 931,877 (17,068)

Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets
Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as follows:
• Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-financial physical assets (Refer to Note 4.1 Property plant and equipment).
• Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-financial physical assets (Refer to Note 4.3 Investment Properties and associated liability Note 5.3).
• Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of non-financial assets.
Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal.

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments 
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments includes:

Other gains/ (losses) from other economic flows
Other gains/ (losses) include:

•	the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond interest rates.

• impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost refer to Note 5.1 Receivables.

• the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond rate movements, inflation rate movements and the impact of changes in probability 
factors.

Other economic flows are changes in the volume or value of an asset or liability that do not result from transactions. Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows include the gains or 
losses from:

How we recognise other economic flows
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Note 4:   Key Assets to support service delivery

Structure
4.1  Property, plant & equipment
4.2  Depreciation
4.3  Investment properties

Telling the COVID-19 story

Key judgements and estimates

Key judgements and estimates

Estimating restoration costs at the end of a lease

Estimating the useful life of intangible assets

Note 4.1: Property, plant and equipment Consol'd Consol'd

Note 4.1(a): Property, plant and equipment -  Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation 2021 2020
$ $

Land
Land - Freehold 3,788,647 2,816,000
TOTAL LAND AT FAIR VALUE 3,788,647 2,816,000

Buildings
Buildings at Fair Value 12,080,890 11,830,241

Less accumulated depreciation (1,676,964) (848,581)
Sub-total Buildings at Fair Value 10,403,926 10,981,660

Building Work in Progress at Cost 42,842 90,560

TOTAL BUILDINGS 10,446,768 11,072,220

Plant and Equipment at fair value 1,410,656 1,324,136
Less accumulated depreciation (1,030,114) (959,330)

TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 380,542 364,806

Motor Vehicles at fair value 430,322 474,961
Less accumulated depreciation (348,741) (319,463)

TOTAL MOTOR VEHICLES 81,581 155,498

Medical Equipment at fair value 114,003 107,298
Less accumulated depreciation (94,799) (92,800)

TOTAL MEDICAL EQUIPMENT 19,204 14,498

Right of use assets
- Equipment 239,903 239,903
- Motor vehicles 112,548 49,135

Less accumulated depreciation (110,249) (45,447)
TOTAL RIGHT OF USE - EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES 242,202 243,591

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14,958,944 14,666,613

The Health Service applies significant judgement to determine whether or not it is reasonably certain to exercise such purchase options.

Identifying indicators of impairment

Assets used to support the delivery of our services during the financial year were not materially impacted by the COVID-19 Coronavirus pandemic.

This section contains the following key judgements and estimates:

Measuring fair value of property, plant and equipment and 
investment properties

Estimating useful life and residual value of property, plant and 
equipment

Estimating useful life of right-of-use assets

The health service controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in fulfilling its objectives and conducting its activities. They represent the key resources that have been 
entrusted to the health service to be utilised for delivery of those outputs.

Description
Hesse Rural Health obtains independent valuations for its non-current assets at least once every five years.

If an independent valuation has not been undertaken at balance date, the health service estimates possible changes in fair value since the date of the last independent valuation with 
reference to Valuer-General of Victoria indices.

Managerial adjustments are recorded if the assessment concludes a material change in fair value has occurred. Where exceptionally large movements are identified, an interim 
independent valuation is undertaken.

Where a lease agreement requires Hesse Rural Health to restore a right-of-use asset to its original condition at the end of a lease, the health service estimates the present value of 
such restoration costs. This cost is included in the measurement of the right-of-use asset, which is depreciated over the relevant lease term.

The Health Service assigns an estimated useful life to each intangible asset with a finite useful life, which is used to calculate amortisation of the asset.

 If an asset is obsolete or damaged
 If the asset has become idle or if there are plans to discontinue or dispose of the asset before the end of its useful life

 If the performance of the asset is or will be worse than initially expected.

Where an impairment trigger exists, the health services applies significant judgement and estimate to determine the recoverable amount of the asset.

The Health Service assigns an estimated useful life to each item of property, plant and equipment, whilst also estimating the residual value of the asset, if any, at the end of the 
useful life. This is used to calculate depreciation of the asset.

At the end of each year, Hesse Rural Health assesses impairment by evaluating the conditions and events specific to the health service that may be indicative of impairment triggers. 
Where an indication exists, the health service tests the asset for impairment.

The health service considers a range of information when performing its assessment, including considering:

 If an asset’s value has declined more than expected based on normal use

 If a significant change in technological, market, economic or legal environment which adversely impacts the way the health service uses an asset

The health service reviews the useful life, residual value and depreciation rates of all assets at the end of each financial year and where necessary, records a change in accounting 
estimate. 

The useful life of each right-of-use asset is typically the respective lease term, except where the health service is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option contained within 
the lease (if any), in which case the useful life reverts to the estimated useful life of the underlying asset.
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Consolidated Motor Plant & Medical Total
Land Buildings Vehicles Equipment Equipment Consolidated

$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Balance at 1 July 2019 2,816,000 11,701,000 214,654 383,082 15,870 126,920 15,257,526

- - - - - 104,984 104,984
Adjusted balance at 1 July 2019 2,816,000 11,701,000 214,654 383,082 15,870 231,904 15,362,510
Additions - 219,801 - 62,665 2,300 99,671 384,437
Disposals - - (14,244) - - - (14,244)
Revaluation Increments - - - - - - -
Depreciation Expense (Note 4.2) - (848,581) (44,912) (80,941) (3,672) (87,984) (1,066,090)
Balance at 1 July 2020 2,816,000 11,072,220 155,498 364,806 14,498 243,591 14,666,613

Additions 445,569 422,695 - 88,023 6,705 108,565 1,071,557
Disposals - (197,890) (35,009) - - - (232,899)
Revaluation Increments 527,078 - - - - - 527,078
Depreciation Expense (Note 4.2) - (850,257) (38,908) (72,287) (1,999) (109,954) (1,073,405)
Balance at 30 June 2021 3,788,647 10,446,768 81,581 380,542 19,204 242,202 14,958,944

Land and buildings carried at valuation

Initial Recognition

Recognition of right-of-use assets on initial application of 
AASB16

Where an independent valuation has not been undertaken at balance date, the Health Service perform a managerial assessment to estimate possible changes in fair value of land and 
buildings since the date of the last independent valuation with reference to Valuer-General of Victoria (VGV) indices.

The Valuer-General Victoria undertook to revalue all of Hesse Rural Health Services owned and lease land and buildings to determine their fair value.  The valuation, which conforms to Australian Valuation Standards, was 
determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.  The valuation was based on independent assessments.  The effective 
date of the valuation was 30 June 2019. 

How we recognise property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are used by Hesse Rural Health in the supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administration purposes, and are 
expected to be used during more than one financial year.

Note 4.1(b): Property, plant and equipment - Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset

Fair value is based on periodic valuations by independent valuers, which normally occur once every five years, based upon the asset’s Government Purpose Classification, but may occur 
more frequently if fair value assessments indicate a material change in fair value has occurred. 

Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ to the extent that a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of 
property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, the decrement is recognised as an expense in the net result.

Subsequent measurement

Further information regarding fair value measurement is disclosed below.

The revaluation reserve included in equity in respect of an item of property, plant and equipment may be transferred directly to retained earnings when the asset is derecognised.

Fair value is determined with reference to the asset’s highest and best use (considering legal or physical restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made 
in relation to the intended use of the asset).

- Increase in the fair value of buildings of 6% ($658,900)

As the cumulative movement was less than 10% for buildings since the last revaluation a managerial revaluation adjustment was not required as at 30 June 2021.

An independent revaluation of Hesse Rural Health's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General of Victoria (VGV) in May 2019.  The valuation, which complies with Australian 
Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The 
managerial assessment performed at 30 June 2021 indicated an overall:

Revaluation

- Increase in the fair value of land of 16% ($527,078)

As the cumulative movement was greater than 10% for land since the last revaluation a managerial revaluation adjustment was required as at 30 June 2021.

Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ and are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses a 
revaluation decrement in respect of that same class of asset previously recognised as an expense in net result, in which case the increment is recognised as income in the net result.

Items of property, plant and equipment (excluding right-of-use assets) are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses where applicable. 

 Right of use 
assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment (excluding right-of-use assets) are initially measured at cost. Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, being far below the fair value of the 
asset, the deemed cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Assets transferred as part of an amalgamation/machinery of government change are transferred at their carrying amounts.

An adjustment is recognised if the assessment concludes that the fair value of land and buildings has changed by 10% or more since the last revaluation (whether that be the most recent 
independent valuation or managerial valuation). Any estimated change in fair value of less than 10% is deemed immaterial to the financial statements and no adjustment is recorded. 
Where the assessment indicates there has been an exceptionally material movement in the fair value of land and buildings since the last independent valuation, being equal to or in 
excess of 40%, Hesse Rural Health Service would obtain an interim independent valuation prior to the next scheduled independent valuation.

Revaluation increases (increments) arise when an asset’s fair value exceeds its carrying amount. In comparison, revaluation decreases (decrements) arise when an asset’s fair value is 
less than its carrying amount. Revaluation increments and revaluation decrements relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset against one another within that class but are 
not offset in respect of assets in different classes.
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Leased equipment
Vehicles

Subsequent measurement 

Impairment

Note 4.1 ( c); Fair value measurement hierarchy of assets

Note
Balance at 30 June 2021 Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)

$ $ $ $

Non-specialised land 1,698,909 - 1,698,909 -
Specialised land 2,089,738 - - 2,089,738
Total of land at fair value 4.1(a) 3,788,647 - 1,698,909 2,089,738

Non-specialised buildings 217,028 217,028 -
Specialised buildings 10,186,898 - - 10,186,898
Total of buildings at fair value 4.1(a) 10,403,926 - 217,028 10,186,898

Plant and equipment at fair value 4.1(a) 380,542 - - 380,542
Motor Vehicles at fair value 4.1(a) 81,581 - - 81,581
Medical equipment at fair value 4.1(a) 19,204 - - 19,204
Right of use equipment and vehicles 4.1(a) 242,202 - - 242,202
Total other plant and equipment at fair value 723,529 - - 723,529
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 14,916,102 - 1,915,937 13,000,165

How we recognise right-of-use assets

The Health Service has concluded that the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment which are regularly revalued is expected to be materially consistent with the current fair 
value. As such, there were no indications of property, plant and equipment being impaired at balance date.

At the end of each financial year, Hesse Rural Health assesses if there is any indication that an item of property, plant and equipment may be impaired by considering internal and external 
sources of information. If an indication exists, the Health Service estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, 
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease as noted above.

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:Consolidated 

carrying amount

At the end of each financial year, the Health Service assesses if there is any indication that a right-of-use asset may be impaired by considering internal and external sources of 
information. If an indication exists, the Health Service estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an 
impairment loss is recognised.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses where applicable. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for 
certain remeasurements of the lease liability (for example, when a variable lease payment based on an index or rate becomes effective).

Hesse Rural Health performed an impairment assessment and noted there were no indications of its right-of-use assets being impaired at balance date.

Unless the lease is considered a short-term lease or a lease of a low-value asset (refer to Note 6.1 for further information), the contract gives rise to a right-of-use asset and corresponding 
lease liability. The Health Service presents its right-of-use assets as part of property, plant and equipment as if the asset was owned by the health service.

5 years

Hesse Rural Health presents right-of-use assets as ‘property plant equipment’ unless they meet the definition of investment property, in which case they are disclosed as ‘investment 
property’ in the balance sheet.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and comprises the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, adjusted for:

Presentation of right-of-use assets 

Initial recognition

When a contract is entered into, the Health Service assesses if the contract contains or is a lease. If a lease is present, a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability is recognised. 
The definition and recognition criteria of a lease is disclosed at Note 6.1. 

3 years

- an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. 

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
- any initial direct costs incurred, and

Hesse Rural Health’s motor vehicle lease agreements contain purchase options which the health service is not reasonably certain to exercise at the completion of the lease.

Right-of-use assets and their respective lease terms include:

Class of right-of-use asset Lease term

Impairment

Where Hesse Rural Health enters a contract, which provides the health service with the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for payment, this 
contract is considered a lease.
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Note 4.1 ( c); Fair value measurement hierarchy of assets (continued)

Note
Balance at 30 June 2020 Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)

$ $ $ $

Non-specialised land 1,055,000 1,055,000 -
Specialised land 1,761,000 - - 1,761,000
Total of land at fair value 4.1(a) 2,816,000 - 1,055,000 1,761,000

Non-specialised buildings 60,000 60,000 -
Specialised buildings 10,921,660 - - 10,921,660
Total of buildings at fair value 4.1(a) 10,981,660 - 60,000 10,921,660

Plant and equipment at fair value 4.1(a) 364,806 - - 364,806
Motor Vehicles at fair value 4.1(a) 155,498 - - 155,498
Medical equipment at fair value 4.1(a) 14,498 - - 14,498
Right of use equipment and vehicles 4.1(a) 243,591 - - 243,591
Total other plant and equipment at fair value 778,393 - - 778,393
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 14,576,053 - 1,115,000 13,461,053

Note
(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, 

Note 4.1 (d): Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement

Consolidated Motor Vehicles
$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2020 1,761,000 10,921,660 155,498 364,806 14,498 243,591
Purchases (sales) - 307,532 (35,009) 88,023 6,705 108,565
Transfers in (out) of Level 3 - -
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation - (844,404) (38,908) (72,287) (1,999) (109,954)
- Impairment loss - (197,890) - - - -
Subtotal 1,761,000 10,186,898 81,581 380,542 19,204 242,202

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation 328,738 - - - - -
Subtotal 328,738 - - - -

Balance at 30 June 2021 2,089,738 10,186,898 81,581 380,542 19,204 242,202

Consolidated Motor Vehicles
$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2019 1,761,000 11,641,000 214,654 383,082 15,870 243,591
Purchases (sales) - 129,241 (14,244) 62,665 2,300 87,984
Transfers in (out) of Level 3 - -
Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation - (848,581) (44,912) (80,941) (3,672) (87,984)
- Impairment loss - - - - - -
Subtotal 1,761,000 10,921,660 155,498 364,806 14,498 243,591

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation - - - - - -
Subtotal - - - - -

Balance at 30 June 2020 1,761,000 10,921,660 155,498 364,806 14,498 243,591

Note 4.1 (e): Fair value determination

Asset class Fair 
value level

Non‑specialised buildings Level 2

Vehicles Level 3

Land

Buildings

Buildings

Plant and 
equipment Medical equipment

Right-of-use 
assets

Right-of-use 
assets

Valuation approach

Market approach

Depreciated replacement cost approachLevel 3

Medical equipment

Land

Market approach

n.a.

Community Service Obligations Adjustments (i)

Plant and 
equipment

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

Significant inputs (Level 3 only)

Depreciated replacement cost approach - Cost per unit; useful life

Level 2

There have been no transfers between levels during the current year.

Consolidated 
carrying amount

Level 3

Non‑specialised land

n.a.
- Cost per  square metre
- Useful life

(i) A community service obligation (CSO) of 0% was applied to Hesse Rural Health's specialised land.

Specialised Land (Crown / Freehold)

Specialised buildings

Market approach

Depreciated replacement cost approachLevel 3 - Cost per unit
- Useful lifePlant and equipment 
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Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings

Specialised land and specialised buildings

Vehicles

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Hesse Rural Health Service has determined classes of assets on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset and the level of the 
fair value hierarchy as explained below.

In addition, Hesse Rural Health Service determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, an independent valuation was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria to determine the fair value using the market approach. 
Valuation of the assets was determined by analysing comparable sales and allowing for share, size, topography, location and other relevant factors specific to the asset being valued. An 
appropriate rate per square metre has been applied to the subject asset. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.

Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are valued using the market approach. Under this valuation method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of 
comparable assets which are considered to have nominal or no added improvement value.

In determining fair values a number of inputs are used. To increase consistency and comparability in the financial statements, these inputs are categorised into three levels, also known as 
the fair value hierarchy. The levels are as follows: 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is Hesse Rural Health Service’s independent valuation agency.

During the reporting period, Hesse Rural Health Services held Crown Land. The nature of this asset means that there are certain limitations and restrictions imposed on its use and/or 
disposal that may impact their fair value.

Level 3 fair value inputs are unobservable valuation inputs for an asset or liability. These inputs require significant judgement and assumptions in deriving fair value for both financial and 
non-financial assets.

Identifying unobservable inputs (level 3) fair value measurements

Unobservable inputs shall be used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market 
activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. However, the fair value measurement objective remains the same, i.e., an exit price at the measurement date from the 
perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability. Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk.

Judgements about highest and best use must take into account the characteristics of the assets concerned, including restrictions on the use and disposal of assets arising from the asset’s
physical nature and any applicable legislative/contractual arrangements.

• Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
• Level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

How we measure fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Valuation hierarchy

The Health Service acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic life. The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is managed 
by the Health Service who set relevant depreciation rates during use to reflect the consumption of the vehicles. As a result, the fair value of vehicles does not differ materially from the 
carrying amount (depreciated cost).

An independent valuation of Hesse Rural Health Services' specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria.  The valuation was performed using 
the market approach adjusted for CSO.  The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.

For Hesse Rural Health Service, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of specialised buildings, adjusting for the associated depreciation. As depreciation 
adjustments are considered as significant and unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.

The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the extent that is also equally applicable to market participants. This 
approach is in light of the highest and best use consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible, legally permissible 
and financially feasible. As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant unobservable inputs, specialised land would be classified as Level 3 assets. 

• Level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

Consideration of highest and best use (HBU) for non-financial physical assets

The market approach is used for specialised land and specialised buildings although it is adjusted for the community service obligation (CSO) to reflect the specialised nature of the assets 
being valued. Under this valuation method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assets which are considered to have nominal or no added 
improvement value. Specialised assets contain significant, unobservable adjustments; therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 under the market based direct comparison 
approach.

Specialised land includes Crown Land which is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due consideration is made for any legal or physical 
restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to 
the assets are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-financial 
physical assets will be their highest and best use.

In accordance with paragraph AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement  paragraph 29, Health Services can assume the current use of a non-financial physical asset is its HBU unless market or 
other factors suggest that a different use by market participants would maximise the value of the asset.
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Plant and equipment

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2021.

For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered to be the highest and best use.

Consol'd Consol'd
Note 2021 2020

Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus $ $
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 7,371,810 7,371,810
Revaluation Increments

 - Land 4.1(b) 527,078 -
 - Buildings 4.1(b) - -

Balance at the end of the reporting period 7,898,888 7,371,810

Represented by:
 - Land 1,961,332 1,679,732
 - Buildings 5,937,556 5,692,078

7,898,888 7,371,810

Note 4.2:   Depreciation Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

$ $
Buildings 850,257 848,581
Plant & Equipment 72,287 80,941
Motor Vehicles 38,908 44,912
Medical Equipment 1,999 3,672
Right of use assets
- Right of use equipment and vehicles 109,954 87,984
Total Depreciation 1,073,405 1,066,090

How we recognise depreciation

Note 4.3:   Investment properties

Consol'd Consol'd
Note 4.3(a): Movements in carrying value for investment properties 2021 2020

$ $
Balance at Beginning of Period 976,065 920,000
Acquisition and capital expenditure 36,190 1,065
Net Gain/(Loss) from Fair Value Adjustments (note 3.4) 512,745 55,000

Balance at End of Period 1,525,000 976,065

Note 4.3 (b): Fair value measurement hierarchy for investment properties

Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)
$ $ $ $

Investment properties 1,525,000 - 1,525,000 -
1,525,000 - 1,525,000 -

Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)
$ $ $ $

Investment properties 976,065 - 976,065 -
976,065 - 976,065 -

Note
(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, 

Consolidated 
carrying amount 

as at 30 June 
2021

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

All buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets (excluding items under operating leases, assets held for sale, land and investment properties) that have finite 
useful lives are depreciated. Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight-line basis at rates that allocate the asset’s value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful 
life. 

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period 
using:

Hesse Rural Health has assets classified as investment property for the purposes of AASB140 Investment Property, including independent living units.  These assets are carried at 
amounts which represent fair value at balance date.

Right-of use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term. Where Hesse Rural Health obtains ownership of the underlying leased asset or if the cost 
of the right-of-use asset reflects that the entity will exercise a purchase option, the entity depreciates the right-of-use asset overs its useful life.

Consolidated 
carrying amount 

as at 30 June 
2020

Assets with a cost in excess of $1,000 are capitalised and depreciation has been provided on depreciable assets so as to allocate their cost or valuation over their estimated useful lives. 

How we measure fair value (continued)

Plant and equipment (including medical equipment, computers and communication equipment and furniture and fittings are held at carrying amount (depreciated cost). When plant and 
equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to estimate the fair value. Unless there is market 
evidence that current replacement costs are significantly different from the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely that depreciated replacement cost will be materially different 
from the existing carrying amount. 

Note 4.1 (f): Property, plant and equipment - Revaluation Surplus

Page 21

    58 2021 Annual Report



HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 30 JUNE 2021
HESSE RURAL HEALTH SERVICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

How we recognise investment properties

Initial recognition

Subsequent measurement

The fair value of the Health Service’s investment properties at 30 June 2021 have been arrived on the basis of an independent valuation carried out by Opteon. The valuation was 
determined by reference to market evidence of transaction process for similar properties with no significant unobservable adjustments, in the same location and condition.

For investment properties measured at fair value, the current use of the asset is considered the highest and best use.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the 
originally assessed performance of the asset will flow to the Health Service.

Net gains or losses on revaluation are recognised as other economic flows included in net result.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investment properties are revalued to fair value, determined annually by independent valuers. Fair values are determined based on a market 
comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties. Investment properties are neither depreciated nor tested for impairment.

Investment properties represent properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment properties exclude properties held to meet service delivery objectives of the 
health services.

Rental revenue from leasing of investment properties is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement in the periods in which it is receivable on a straight line basis over the lease 
term. 

There have been no transfers between levels during the period. There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2021.
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Note 5: Other Assets and liabilities

This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from the health service's operations.

Structure
5.1  Receivables and contract assets
5.2  Payables and contract liabilities
5.3  Other liabilities

Telling the COVID-19 story

Key judgements and estimates

Key judgements and estimates

Estimating the provision for expected credit losses

Measuring contract liabilities

Recognition of other provisions

Note 5.1: Receivables and contract assets Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

Current receivables and contract assets $ $

Contractual
Patient and Resident Fees 169,947 137,871
Trade Debtors 72,818 151,674
Accrued revenue 645,277 -
Amounts receivable from governments and agencies 130,042 -
   Allowance for expected credit losses (16,600) (16,600)
Total contractual receivables 1,001,484 272,945

Statutory
GST Receivable 91,752 33,362
Total statutory receivables 91,752 33,362

Total current receivables and contract assets 1,093,236 306,307

Non-current receivables and contract assets

Contractual
 Long Service Leave - Department of Health and Human Services 491,233 485,628
Total contractual receivables 491,233 485,628

Total non-current receivables and contract assets 491,233 485,628

Total receivables and contract assets 1,584,469 791,935

(i) Financial assets classified as receivables and contract assets (Note 7.1(a))

Total receivables and contract assets 1,584,469 791,935
Allowance for expected credit losses 16,600 16,600
GST receivable (91,752) (33,362)

Total financial assets 1,509,317 775,173

Note 5.1 (a): Movement in the Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables

Balance at beginning of year (16,600) (97,197)
Amounts written off during the year - 109,319
Increase in allowance recognised in net result - (28,722)

Balance at end of year (16,600) (16,600)

This section contains the following key judgements and estimates:

The Health Service uses a simplified approach to account for the expected credit loss provision. A provision matrix is used, which considers historical experience, external indicators 
and forward-looking information to determine expected credit loss rates.

Measuring deferred capital grant income

Description

The measurement of other assets and liabilities used to support delivery of our services were impacted during the financial year which was attributable to the COVID-19 Coronavirus 
pandemic. 

Commonwealth Social Support Group - Community & Home Support

Due to the restrictions arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, the Social Support Group activities ceased from July 2020 to December 2020.  The funding received for the six months 
ending 31 December 2020 ($118,226) has been recognised as contract liabilities as the performance obligations have not been met during the year. The Commonwealth government has 
advised that these funds will be permitted to be carried forward to 2022.

The following contract liabilities were impacted:

Where the Health Service has received funding to construct an identifiable non-financial asset, such funding is recognised as deferred capital grant income until the underlying asset 
is constructed.

The Health Service applies significant judgement when measuring the deferred capital grant income balance, which references the estimated the stage of completion at the end of 
each financial year.

The Health Service applies significant judgement to measure its progress towards satisfying a performance obligation as detailed in Note 2. Where a performance obligation is yet to 
be satisfied, the health service assigns funds to the outstanding obligation and records this as a contract liability until the promised good or service is transferred to the customer.

Other provisions include the Health Service’s obligation to restore leased assets to their original condition at the end of a lease term. The health service applies significant judgement 
and estimate to determine the present value of such restoration costs.
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Receivables consist of:

Impairment losses of contractual receivables

Note 5.2:   Payables and contract liabilities Consol'd Consol'd
Notes 2021 2020

Current payables and contract liabilities $ $

Contractual
Trade Creditors 129,072 75,382
SWARH Payables 227,517 220,719
Accrued Salaries and Wages 117,691 352,318
Accrued Expenses 53,570 25,300
Contract Liabilities - income received in advance 5.2(b) 197,559 177,715
Deferred grant revenue 5.2(a) 87,064 87,064
Inter-hospital creditors 23,878 28,633
Amounts payable to governments and agencies 213,264 -
Total contractual payables 1,049,615 967,131

Total payables and contract liabilities 1,049,615 967,131

(i) Financial liabilities classified as payables and contract liabilities (Note 7.1(a))

Total payables and contract liabilities 1,049,615 967,131
Deferred grant income (87,064) (87,064)
Contract liabilities (197,559) (177,715)

Total financial liabilities 764,992 702,352

Payables consist of:

Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

$ $
87,064 109,514

- 50,100
- (72,550)

87,064 87,064

Refer to Note 7.2 (a) Contractual receivables at amortised costs for Hesse Rural Health Service’s contractual impairment losses.

Note 5.2 (a) Deferred capital grant revenue

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using estimates, 
averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

• Contractual receivables, which mostly includes debtors in relation to goods and services. These receivables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as ‘financial assets 
at amortised costs’. They are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Hesse Rural Health Service holds the contractual receivables with the objective 
to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. 

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of recognition. 

The normal credit terms are usually Net 30 days. 

• contractual payables which consist predominantly of accounts payable representing liabilities for goods and services provided to the Health Service prior to the end of the financial 
year that are unpaid, and arise when the health service becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services.  

• statutory payables, that are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the category of financial 
liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from contracts. 

How we recognise receivables

• Statutory receivables, which mostly includes amounts owing from the Victorian Government and Goods and Services Tax (GST) input tax credits recoverable. Statutory receivables do 
not arise from contracts and are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not classified as financial instruments for disclosure 
purposes. Hesse Rural Health Service applies AASB 9 for initial measurement of the statutory receivables and as a result statutory receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus any 
directly attributable transaction cost.

Hesse Rural Health Service is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade receivables 
consist of a large number of customers in various geographical areas. Based on historical information about customer default rates, management consider the credit quality of trade 
receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good.

How we recognise payables

Grant consideration was received in the previous year from DH for Fire Services upgrades.  Grant revenue is recognised progressively as the asset is constructed, since this is the time 
when Hesse Rural Health satisfies its obligations under the transfer by controlling the asset as and when it is constructed. The progressive percentage costs incurred is used to recognise 
income because this most closely reflects the progress to completion as costs are incurred as the works are done. (see note 2.1) As a result, Hesse Rural Health has deferred recognition 
of a portion of the grant consideration received as a liability for the outstanding obligations.

How we recognise deferred capital grant revenue

The Health Service expects to recognise all of the remaining deferred capital grant revenue for capital works by 30 June 2022.

Grant consideration for capital works received during the year
Grant revenue for capital works recognised consistent with the capital works undertaken during the year 

Opening balance of deferred grant income

Closing balance 

Payables
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Consol'd Consol'd
Note 5.2 (b) Contract liabilities 2021 2020

$ $
177,715 -
570,110 620,874

(550,266) (443,159)
Total contract liabilities 197,559 177,715
Represented by
Current contract liabilities 197,559 177,715

DH WIES funding

SWARH joint venture

Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to Note 7.2(b) for the maturity analysis of payables.

Note 5.3:   Other Liabilities Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

CURRENT $ $
Monies held in trust*: Patient monies held in trust 37,939 21,153
Monies held in trust*: Refundable accommodation bonds 8,543,084 7,405,663
Monies held in trust*: Home Care Packages held in trust 682,559 357,046
Total monies held in trust* 9,263,582 7,783,862

Resident loan obligations - independent living units 292,500 351,000
Total Other Liabilities 9,556,082 8,134,862

* Total Monies Held in Trust Represented by the following assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer to Note 6.2) 6,180,609 4,830,931
Commonwealth Home Care packages receivable 130,042 -
Land and Buildings - Residential Aged Care 2,952,931 2,952,931
TOTAL 9,263,582 7,783,862

Refundable Accommodation Deposit (“RAD”)/Accommodation Bond liabilities 

Resident loan obligations - independent living units

RAD/accommodation bond liabilities are recorded at an amount equal to the proceeds received, net of retention and any other amounts deducted from the RAD/accommodation bond in 
accordance with the Aged Care Act 1997.

Commonwealth Aged Care Bed Subsidies are received monthly in advance.  Grant income is recognised as service obligations are met.  Differences in the number of bed days, payment 
rates and supplements may be adjusted in the funding provided in the following month.

Grants are received from the Commonwealth government quarterly in advance to deliver a number of Community and Home care support programs.  Grant income is recognised as 
service obligations are met by the programs being delivered.  Differences arose with respect to the Social Support Group program as COVID-19 restrictions meant that the program was 
not able to be delivered for the period July to December 2020.

Hesse Rural Health records its share of jointly controlled assets and liabilities.

Opening balance of contract liabilities

How we recognise other liabilities:

Commonwealth Aged Care Bed Subsidies

RADs/accommodation bonds are non-interest-bearing deposits made by some aged care residents to the health service upon admission. These deposits are liabilities which fall due and 
payable when the resident leaves the home. As there is no unconditional right to defer payment for 12 months, these liabilities are recorded as current liabilities. 

Resident loan obligations are ingoing contributions made by residents occupying units subject to independent living agreements.  Hesse Rural Health acquired these liabilities upon 
acquisition of the independent living units. The resident loan obligations are revalued annually based on the current market value of the investment property (refer note 3.2).  The amount 
repayable to the resident under the independent living agreement is based on a percentage of the current market value of the investment property. These deposits are liabilities which fall 
due and payable when the resident leaves the home. As there is no unconditional right to defer payment for 12 months, these liabilities are recorded as current liabilities. 

How we recognise contract liabilities:

Payments received for performance obligations not yet fulfilled
Revenue recognised for the completion of a performance obligation

Grants are received from the State government in advance to support TAC and DVA Wies targets. Grant income is recognised as service obligations are met. Differences in the number of 
some services provided may be adjusted in the funding provided annually. The remaining grant revenue is recognised when the service obligations are delivered in the following year.  

Commonwealth HACC NDIS funding
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Note 6: How we Finance our Operations

Structure
6.1  Borrowings
6.2  Cash and cash equivalents
6.3  Commitments for expenditure
6.4  Non-cash financing and investing activities

Telling the COVID-19 story

Key judgements and estimates

Key judgements and estimates

Discount rate applied to future lease payments

Note 6.1:   Borrowings Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

Current $ $
Lease liability (i) 87,224 71,118
Total Current 87,224 71,118

Non-Current
Lease liability (i) 117,376 95,909
Total Non-Current 117,376 95,909

TOTAL BORROWINGS 204,600 167,027

(i) Secured by the assets leased. Leases are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of a default.

Maturity analysis
Please refer to Note 7.2 (b) for the maturity analysis of borrowings.

Defaults and breaches
During the current and prior year, there have been no defaults and breaches of any of the borrowings.

Description
The Health Service applies significant judgement to determine if a contract is or contains a lease by considering if the health service:

The Health Service applies significant judgement when determining if a lease meets the short-term or low value lease exemption criteria.

The health service estimates the fair value of leased assets when new. Where the estimated fair value is less than $10,000, the health service applies the low-value lease exemption.

The Health Service discounts its lease payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for the health 
service’s lease arrangements, Hesse Rural Health uses its incremental borrowing rate, which is the amount the health service would have to pay to borrow funds necessary to obtain 
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

 If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the health service is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate) the lease.

 The health service considers historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption to replace such leased assets.

Determining if a contract is or contains a lease

Determining if a lease meets the short-term or low value asset 
lease exemption

Assessing the lease term

 has the right-to-use an identified asset
 has the right to obtain substantially all economic benefits from the use of the leased asset and

 can decide how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout the lease.

This section contains the following key judgements and estimates:

Our finance and borrowing arrangements were not materially impacted by the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic because the health service’s response was funded by Government.

This section provides information on the sources of finance utilised by the hospital during its operations, along with interest expenses (the cost of borrowings) and other information related 
to financing activities of the hospital.

This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments (such as borrowings and cash balances).  Note: 7.1 provides additional, specific financial instrument 
disclosures.

The health service also estimates the lease term with reference to remaining lease term and period that the lease remains enforceable. Where the enforceable lease period is less 
than 12 months the health service applies the short-term lease exemption.

The lease term represents the non-cancellable period of a lease, combined with periods covered by an option to extend or terminate the lease if the Health Service is reasonably 
certain to exercise such options.

The Health Service determines the likelihood of exercising such options on a lease-by-lease basis through consideration of various factors including:

 If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the health service is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate) the lease.
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Note 6.1 (a) Lease liabilities

Hesse Rural Health's lease liablities are summarised below:
Consol'd Consol'd

2021 2020
$ $

Total undiscounted lease liabilities 207,558 168,819
Less unexpired finance expenses (2,958) (1,792)

204,600 167,027

The following table sets out the maturinty analysis of lease liabilities, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be made after the reporting date.

Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

$ $
Not later than one year 89,422 72,910
Later than one year but not longer than five years 118,136 95,909
Minimum future lease liability 207,558 168,819

Less unexpired finance expenses (2,958) (1,792)
Present value of lease liability 204,600 167,027

* Represented by:
- Current liabilities 87,224 71,118
- Non-current liabilities 117,376 95,909

204,600 167,027

Hesse Rural Health's lease arrangements consist of the following:

Leased equipment
Leased vehicles

Separation of lease and non-lease components 

Initial measurement 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

Hesse's current leases do not contain extension and termination options.

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentive receivable; 

Short-term lease payments

Variable lease payments not based on an index or rate

Description of payment

To apply this definition, the Health Service ensures the contract meets the following criteria: 

How we recognise lease liabilities

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
- payments arising from purchase and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised. 

Leases where the underlying asset’s fair value, when new, is no more than $10,000

Leases with a term less than 12 months

Payments which are not based on an index or rate

Type of leases captured

Type of asset leased Lease term

5 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is 
readily determinable or Hesse Rural Health's incremental borrowing rate. Our lease liability has been discounted by 2.25%

3 years

All leases are recognised on the balance sheet, with the exception of low value leases (less than $10,000 AUD) and short term leases of less than 12 months. The following low value, 
short term and variable lease payments are recognised in profit or loss:

Monthly rental of container and site office, room rental.

n/a

 Minimum future lease 
payments 

- the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Health 
Service and for which the supplier does not have substantive substitution rights

- Hesse Rural Health has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined 
scope of the contract and the health service has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use  and

n/a

- the Health Service has the right to take decisions in respect of ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

Type of payment

Low value lease payments

- variable payments based on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date; 

A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment. All leases are recognised on the balance 
sheet, with the exception of low value leases (less than $10,000 AUD) and short term leases of less than 12 months.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the lessee is required to separate out and account separately for non-lease components within a lease 
contract and exclude these amounts when determining  the lease liability and right-of-use asset amount. 
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Subsequent measurement 

Note 6.2:   Cash and Cash Equivalents
Consol'd Consol'd

2021 2020
$ $

Cash on Hand (excluding monies held in trust) (703) (622)
Cash at Bank (excluding monies held in trust) 214,392 529,983
Deposits at Call (excluding monies held in trust) 700,762 1,167,601
Total cash held for operations 914,451 1,696,962

Cash at Bank (Monies held in trust) 640,543 378,199
Deposits at Call (Monies held in trust) 5,540,066 4,452,732
Total cash held as monies in trust        6,180,609        4,830,931 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,095,060 6,527,893

Note 6.3:   Commitments for Expenditure Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

$ $
Non-cancellable Short Term and low value lease commitments
Less than 1 year - 12,218
Longer than 1 year but not longer than 5 years - -
Total Non-cancellable Lease Commitments - 12,218

TOTAL COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE (exclusive of GST) - 12,218

Future lease payments are recognised on the balance sheet, refer to Note 6.1 Borrowings.

Note 6.4:  Non-cash financing and investing activities Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

$ $

             108,565              104,984 

108,565 104,984

Short term and low value leases

How we disclose our commitments

How we recognise cash and cash equivalents

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are 
changes in-substance fixed payments.

Expenditure commitments

Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These commitments are disclosed at their nominal value and are inclusive of the 
GST payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant information to users, the net present values of significant projects are stated. These future 
expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet. 

The cash flow statement includes monies held in trust.

Hesse Rural Health discloses short term and low value lease commitments which are excluded from the measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Refer to Note 6.1 for 
further information.

Acquisition of motor vehicles and equipment by means of leases

Total Non-cash financing and investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid investments (with an original maturity of three 
months or less), which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right of use asset is already reduced to zero.
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Note 7: Risks, Contingencies & Valuation Uncertainties

Introduction

Structure
7.1  Financial instruments
7.2  Financial risk management objectives and policies
7.3  Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Note 7.1:   Financial Instruments

Note 7.1(a ) Financial Instruments: categorisation

Consolidated
2021

Note
$ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.2 7,095,060 - 7,095,060
Receivables

- Trade Debtors 5.1 242,765 - 242,765
- Other receivables 5.1 1,266,552 - 1,266,552

Total Financial Assets (i) 8,604,377 - 8,604,377
Financial Liabilities
Payables 5.2 - 764,992 1,049,615
Borrowings 6.1 - 204,600 204,600
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation bonds 5.3 - 8,543,084 8,543,084
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units 5.3 - 292,500 292,500
- Other monies held in trust 5.3 - 720,498 720,498

Total Financial Liabilities (i) - 10,525,674 10,810,297

Consolidated
2020

Note
$ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.2 6,527,893 - 6,527,893
Receivables

- Trade Debtors 5.1 289,545 - 289,545
- Other receivables 5.1 485,628 - 485,628

Total Financial Assets (i) 7,303,066 - 7,303,066
Financial Liabilities
Payables 5.2 - 702,352 702,352
Borrowings 6.1 - 167,027 167,027
Other Financial Liabilities

- Accommodation bonds 5.3 - 7,405,663 7,405,663
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units 5.3 - 351,000 351,000
- Other monies held in trust 5.3 - 378,199 378,199

Total Financial Liabilities (i) - 9,004,241 9,004,241

Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component or if the practical expedient was applied as 
specified in AASB 15 para 63.

How we categorise financial instruments

Financial assets are recognised when the Health Service becomes party to the contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is at the date the Health Service commits 
itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the instrument is classified at fair value through net result, in 
which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately. 

Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine the fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted. 

(i) The carrying amount excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST receivable) and statutory payables (i.e. Revenue in Advance).

Financial Assets 
at Amortised Cost

Contractual 
Financial 

Liabilities at 
Amortised Cost

Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of 
Hesse Rural Health Service's activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet 
the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation.  

The health service is exposed to risk from its activities and outside factors. In addition, it is often necessary to make judgements and estimates associated with recognition and 
measurement of items in the financial statements. This section sets out financial instrument specific information, (including exposures to financial risks) as well as those items that are 
contingent in nature or require a higher level of judgement to be applied, which for the health service is related mainly to fair value determination.

Total

Contractual 
Financial 

Liabilities at 
Amortised Cost Total

Categories of financial assets

Financial Assets 
at Amortised Cost
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 - Payables (excluding statutory payables)
 - Borrowings (leases)
 - Other liabilities

Derecognition of financial assets

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Note 7.2:   Financial risk management objectives and policies

Note 7.2(a ) Credit risk

Impairment of financial assets under AASB 9

Credit risk associated with the Health Service’s contractual financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the Victorian Government. For debtors other than the Government, the 
health service is exposed to credit risk associated with patient and other debtors.

Provision of impairment for contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Health Service will not be able to collect a receivable. Objective evidence 
includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments, debtors that are more than 60 days overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings.

Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under AASB 9. Other financial assets mandatorily measured or designated at fair value through net result are not subject to impairment 
assessment under AASB 9. 

Credit loss allowance is classified as other economic flows in the net result. Contractual receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery and impairment 
losses are classified as a transaction expense. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired.

The Health Service uses different methods to measure and manage the different risks to which it is exposed. Primary responsibility for the identification and management of financial risks 
rests with the Accountable Officer.

Credit risk refers to the possibility that a borrower will default on its financial obligations as and when they fall due. The Health Service’s exposure to credit risk arises from the potential 
default of a counter party on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Health Service. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular basis.

Contract financial assets are written off against the carrying amount when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Bad debt written off by mutual consent is classified as a 
transaction expense. Bad debt written off following a unilateral decision is recognised as other economic flows in the net result.

These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any 
impairment. 

The carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents Hesse Rural Health’s maximum exposure to credit 
risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.

There has been no material change to the Health Service’s credit risk profile in 2020-21.

The Health Service records the allowance for expected credit loss for the relevant financial instruments applying AASB 9’s Expected Credit Loss approach. Subject to AASB 9, impairment 
assessment includes the health service’s contractual receivables and its investment in debt instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

In addition, the Health Service does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets and mainly obtains contractual financial assets that are on fixed interest, except for cash and 
deposits, which are mainly cash at bank. As with the policy for debtors, the Health Service’s policy is to only deal with banks with high credit ratings.

The health service recognises the following assets in this category:
• cash and deposits; and
• receivables (excluding statutory receivables).

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being 
recognised in profit and loss over the period of the interest-bearing liability, using the effective interest rate method.

Categories of financial liabilities

As a whole, Hesse Rural Health’s financial risk management program seeks to manage the risks and the associated volatility of its financial performance.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, included the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement, and the basis on which income and expenses are 
recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument above are disclosed throughout the financial statements.

The Health Service’s main financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, and interest rate risk. The Health Service manages these financial risks in accordance with its financial risk 
management policy.

Financial assets are measured at amortised costs if both of the following criteria are met and the assets are not designated as fair value through net result:
• the assets are held by Hesse Rural Health Service to collect the contractual cash flows, and
• the assets’ contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interests.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Hesse Rural Health recognises the following liabilities in this category:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Contractual receivables at amortised cost

Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5
1 Month Months 1 Year Years Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Expected loss rate 0% 4% 3% 29% 55%
Gross carrying amount of contractual receivables 101,054 61,444 53,246 8,629 18,392 242,765
Loss allowance - 2,458 1,597 2,502 10,043 16,600

Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5
1 Month Months 1 Year Years Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Expected loss rate 0% 4% 3% 29% 100%
Gross carrying amount of contractual receivables 166,647 36,284 9,876 14,408 62,330 289,545
Loss allowance - 1,451 968 1,715 12,466 16,600

Reconciliation of the movement in the loss allowance for contractual receivables 2021 2020
$ $

Balance at beginning of the year (16,600) (97,197)
Opening Loss Allowance (16,600) (97,197)
Increase in provision recognised in net result - (28,722)
Reversal of provision of receivables written off during the year as uncollectible - 109,319
Reversal of unused provision recognised in the net result - -
Balance at end of the year (16,600) (16,600)

Note 7.2 (b) Liquidity risk

Consolidated
Financial Liabilities Carrying Nominal Less than 1-3 3 Months - 1-5 Over 5
At amortised cost Note Amount Amount 1 Month Months 1 Year Years Years
2021 $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Payables 5.2          1,049,615 1,049,615 1,049,615 - - -
Borrowings 6.1             204,600 204,600 3,134 9,402 74,688 117,376 -
Other Financial Liabilities 5.3

- Accommodation bonds          8,543,084 8,543,084 - - 2,128,577 6,414,507 -
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units             292,500 292,500 - - - 292,500 -
- Resident monies held in trust             720,498 720,498 710,558 9,940 - - -

Total Financial Liabilities       10,810,297            10,810,297            1,763,307              19,342       2,203,265           6,824,383                         -

2020
Payables 5.2             967,131 967,131 967,131 - - -
Borrowings 6.1             167,027 167,027 3,134 9,402 58,582 95,909 -
Other Financial Liabilities 5.3

- Accommodation bonds          7,405,663 7,405,663 - - 2,128,577 5,277,086 -
- Resident loan obligations - independent living units             351,000 351,000 - - - 351,000 -
- Resident monies held in trust             378,199 378,199 368,259 9,940 - - -

Total Financial Liabilities          9,269,020              9,269,020            1,338,524              19,342       2,187,159           5,723,995                         -

(i) Maturity analysis of financial liabilities excludes statutory financial liabilities (i.e. GST payable)

The statutory receivables are considered to have low credit risk, taking into account the counterparty’s credit rating, risk of default and capacity to meet contractual cash flow obligations in 
the near term. As the result, the loss allowance recognised for this financial asset during the period was limited to 12 months expected losses. No loss allowance recognised at 30 June 
2018 under AASB 139. No additional loss allowance was required upon transition into AASB 9 on 1 July 2018.

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for the Health Service’s financial liabilities. For interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to individual notes to the 
financial statements.

Statutory receivables at amortised cost 

Hesse Rural Health Service’s non-contractual receivables arising from statutory requirements are not financial instruments. However, they are nevertheless recognised and measured in 
accordance with AASB 9 requirements as if those receivables are financial instruments. 

On this basis, Hesse Rural Health Service determines the opening loss allowance on initial application date of AASB 9 and the closing loss allowance at end of the financial year as follows:

30/06/2021 Current

30/06/2020

Liquidity risk arises from being unable to meet financial obligations as they fall due

Hesse Rural Health is exposed to liquidity risk mainly through the financial liabilities as disclosed in the face of the balance sheet and the amounts related to financial guarantees. The 
health service manages its liquidity risk by:

The Health Service’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk. Cash for unexpected events is generally sourced from 
liquidation of investments and other financial assets.

- careful maturity planning of its financial obligations based on forecasts of future cash flows.
- holding investments and other contractual financial assets that are readily tradeable in the financial markets and

- close monitoring of its short-term and long-term borrowings by senior management, including monthly reviews on current and future borrowing levels and requirements

- maintaining an adequate level of uncommitted funds that can be drawn at short notice to meet its short-term obligations

Current

Contractual receivables at amortised cost

Hesse Rural Health Service applies AASB 9 simplified approach for all contractual receivables to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance based on the 
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.Hesse Rural Health Service has grouped contractual receivables on shared credit risk characteristics and days past due and 
select the expected credit loss rate based on past history, existing market conditions, as well as forward looking estimates at the end of the financial year. 

Maturity Dates
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Note 7.2 (c) Market risk

Interest rate risk

Note 7.3:   Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

How we measure and disclose contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Contingent assets

Contingent liabilities

Hesse Rural Health Service has provided a financial guarantee of $100,000 in relation to payroll services.

At the date of this report, Hesse Rural Health has no contingent assets.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. the Health Service does not hold any interest-
bearing financial instruments that are measured at fair value, and therefore has no exposure to fair value interest rate risk.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the health service.

These are classified as either quantifiable, where the potential economic benefit is known, or non-quantifiable.

-	   possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the health service or
-	   present obligations that arise from past events but are not recognised because:
-	   It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations or
-	   the amount of the obligations cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are also classified as either quantifiable or non-quantifiable.

Contingent liabilities are:

Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets 
and contingent liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

The Health Service’s exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are disclosed below.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. the Health Service has minimal exposure 
to cash flow interest rate risks through cash and deposits, term deposits and bank overdrafts that are at floating rate. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value.
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Note 8:  Other Disclosures

Structure
8.1  Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities
8.2  Responsible persons disclosures
8.3  Remuneration of Executives
8.4  Related parties
8.5  Remuneration of auditors
8.6  Events occurring after the balance sheet date
8.7  Controlled entities
8.8  Jointly Controlled Operations
8.9  Economic Dependency
8.10  Equity

Telling the COVID-19 story

Consol'd Consol'd

2021 2020
$ $

Net Result for the Year 298,908 (689,275)

Non-Cash Movements
Depreciation 1,073,405 1,066,090
Revaluation of LSL provision (45,564) 25,165
Revaluation of ILU loan obligation 146,576 19,800

Movements included in investing and financing activities
Net (gain)/loss from disposal of non financial physical assets 11,827 (1,619)
Net (gain)/loss from disposal of financial assets - -
Net (gain) / loss on revaluation of independent living units (512,745) (55,000)

Movements in assets and liabilities:
Change in Operating Assets & Liabilities

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables 82,484 143,127
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Entitlements (175,688) 10,902
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (792,534) 9,538
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Liabilities 128,496 (25,165)
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments 9,392 (16,915)

Net Cash Inflow From Operating Activities 224,557 486,649

Note 8.2:  Responsible Persons Disclosures

FFrroomm TToo
Responsible Ministers:

The Honourable Jenny Mikakos, 1/07/2020 26/09/2020

The Honourable Martin Foley, 26/09/2020 30/06/2021

The Honourable Luke Donnellan 1/07/2020 30/06/2021

Governing Board
K. Taylor (Chair of the Board) 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
N. Hutton 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
M. Dean 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
M. Arnott 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
A. Bennett 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
P. Nemtsas 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
T. O'Loughlin 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
M. Stocks 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
J. Sutherland 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
I. Whiting 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
T. Williams 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
L. Wong 1/07/2020 3/02/2021

Accountable Officers
P. Birkett (Chief Executive Officer) 1/07/2020 29/11/2020
C. Brock (Chief Executive Officer) 30/11/2020 30/06/2021

Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services, Minister for the Coordination of 
Health and Human Services: COVID-19

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following disclosures are 
made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period. PPeerriioodd

Our other disclosures were not materially impacted by the COVID-19 Coronavirus pandemic.

Minister for Health, Minister for Ambulance Services, Minister for the Coordination of 
Health and Human Services: COVID-19

Minister for Child Protection, Minister for Disability, Ageing and Carers

Note 8.1:   Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) from 
Operating Activities

This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or otherwise, for the understanding of this financial report.
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Remuneration of Responsible Persons

The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands: Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

Income Band reported in $'000 $ $
$0 - $9,999 12 11
$90,000 - $99,999 2 -
$240,000 - $249,999 - 1
Total Numbers 14 12

2021 2020
$ $

$228,560 $306,541

Note 8.3: Remuneration of Executives

Remuneration of Executives

Consol'd Consol'd
Remuneration of executive officers 2021 2020

$ $
Short-term benefits 182,953 106,671
Post-employment benefits 13,891 8,221
Other long-term benefits 4,924 3,989
Termination benefits - 108,416
Total Remuneration (i) 201,768 227,297
Total number of executives 2 2

1 1

(ii) Annualised employee equivalent is based on the time fraction worked over the reporting period.

Note 8.4:   Related parties

· all key management personnel and their close family members;
· all cabinet ministers and their close family members

· all hospitals and public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the whole of state consolidated financial statements.

(including Key Management Personnel disclosed in Note 8.4)

.        Controlled entities - Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc.

KMPs are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Health Service and its controlled entities, directly or indirectly. 

Amounts relating to the Governing Board Members and Accountable Officer of Hesse Rural Health Service’s controlled entity are disclosed in the controlled entity's financial statements.
Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report.

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the 
reporting entity amounted to:

(i) The total number of executive officers includes persons who meet the definition of Key Management Personnel (KMP) of Hesse Rural Health Service under AASB 124 Related Party 
Disclosures and are also reported within Note 8.4 Related Parties. 

Remuneration comprises employee benefits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided in exchange for services rendered, and is disclosed in the following categories. 

Post-employment benefits include pensions and other retirement benefits (such as superannuation guarantee contributions) paid or payable on a discrete basis when employment has 
ceased.

Other long-term benefits include long service leave, other long-service benefit or deferred compensation.

The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the table below. Total annualised 
employee equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period.

Termination benefits include termination of employment payments, such as severance packages.

Short-term employee benefits include amounts such as wages, salaries, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or payable on a regular basis, as well as non-monetary benefits 
such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services.

Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE) (ii)

.        jointly Controlled Operation - A member of the SWARH IT alliance; and

The health service is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Victoria. Related parties of the health service include:
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Entity KMP's Position Title FFrroomm TToo
Hesse Rural Health K. Taylor Chair of the Board 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health N. Hutton Board member 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health M. Dean Board member 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health M. Arnott Board member 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health A. Bennett Board member 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health P. Nemtsas Board member 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health T. O'Loughlin Board member 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health M. Stocks Board member 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health J. Sutherland Board member 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health I. Whiting Board member 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health L. Wong Board member 1/07/2020 3/02/2021
Hesse Rural Health T. Williams Board member 1/07/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health P. Birkett Chief Executive Officer 1/07/2020 29/11/2020
Hesse Rural Health C. Brock Chief Executive Officer 30/11/2020 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health J. Brockway Chief Financial Officer 27/04/2021 30/06/2021
Hesse Rural Health M. McLeod Director of Clinical Services 1/07/2020 29/11/2020

Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

Compensation - KMP's $ $
Short term employee benefits 364,789 355,369
Post-employment benefits 54,893 58,811
Other long-term benefits 10,646 11,242
Termination benefits - 108,416
Total (i) 430,327 533,838

(i) KMPs are also reported in Note 8.2 Responsible Persons or Note 8.3 Remuneration of Executives.

Significant transactions with government related entities

- Payroll processing charges paid to Colac Area Health.
- Patient transport fees paid to Ambulance Victoria
- Purchase of drugs and medical supplies from Colac Area Health and South West Healthcare.
- Provision of District Nursing services to Barwon Health, Colac Area Health, Ballarat Health Service and the Alfred Hospital.

Transactions with key management personnel and other related parties

Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Entities

Note 8.5:   Remuneration of Auditors Consol'd Consol'd
2021 2020

Victorian Auditor-General's Office $ $
Audit of financial statement 33,950 34,500

33,950 34,500
Note 8.6:  Events Occurring after the Balance Date

- Professional medical indemnity insurance and other insurance products are obtained from a Victorian Public Financial Corporation.

The Board of Directors and the Executive Directors of Hesse Rural Health Service and it’s controlled entities are deemed to be KMPs.

Key management  personnel

During the year, Hesse Rural Health had the following government-related entity transactions which are undertaken on a normal commercial basis: 

The Standing Directions of the Assistant Treasurer require the health service to hold cash (in excess of working capital) in accordance with the State of Victoria’s centralised banking 
arrangements. All borrowings are required to be sourced from Treasury Corporation Victoria unless an exemption has been approved by the Minister for Health and the Treasurer.

PPeerriioodd

The Chief Financial Officer, Stephen Wight, is a director of Davidsons Accountants and Business Consultants, which provided accounting, bookkeeping and consulting services to Hesse 
Rural Health Service on normal commercial terms and conditions.  Total payments made to Davidsons Accountants and Business Consultants in the financial year were $119,935 (2020 
$119,430).

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the reporting period which further significantly affects or may significantly affect the operations of the Health Service, the results 
of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Health Service. 

Given the breadth and depth of State government activities, related parties transact with the Victorian public sector in a manner consistent with other members of the public e.g. stamp duty 
and other government fees and charges. Further employment of processes within the Victorian public sector occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Public Administration Act 
2004 and Codes of Conduct and Standards issued by the Victorian Public Sector Commission. Procurement processes occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Victorian 
Government Procurement Board requirements. 

The compensation detailed below excludes the salaries and benefits the Portfolio Ministers receive. The Minister’s remuneration and allowances is set by the Parliamentary Salaries and 
Superannuation Act 1968, and is reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report.

Outside of normal citizen type transactions with Hesse Rural Health Service, there were no related party transactions that involved key management personnel, their close family members 
and their personal business interests, except for the transactions listed below. No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised, for impairment of receivables from related 
parties. There were no related party transactions with Cabinet Ministers required to be disclosed in 2019.

Hesse Rural Health received funding from the Department of Health and Human Services of $4.3 million (2020: $4.0 million). 

There were no related party transactions required to be disclosed for the Hesse Rural Health Service Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors in 2021.
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Note 8.7:  Controlled Entities

Equity
Name of Entity Country of Incorporation Holding

Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. 100%

Control is established due to both entities having common Board of Management.

Controlled Entities contribution to the consolidated results
2021 2020

$ $
Net Result for the year $'000 $'000

Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc. (373) (365)

Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

Note 8.8:  Joint Arrangements

Principal Activity 2021 2020
% %

South West Alliance of Rural Health (SWARH) Information Technology 2.34% 2.34%

2021 2020
Current Assets $ $
Cash and Cash Equivalents 238,918 203,498
Receivables 71,951 150,807
Other Assets 15,654 13,701
Total Current Assets 326,523 368,006
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 191,895 134,919
Receivables 11,925 13,365
Total Non-Current Assets 203,820 148,284
Total Assets 530,343 516,290

Current Liabilities
Payables 227,517 220,719
Finance lease liabilities 27,611 22,749
Deferred income 49,370 111,215
Employee Benefits 40,582 39,991
Total Current Liabilities 345,080 394,674
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease liabilities 49,360 30,201
Employee Benefits 7,938 7,545
Total Non Current Liabilities 57,298 37,746
Total Liabilities 402,378 432,420
Net Assets 127,965 83,870

Revenues
Revenue from Operating Activities 430,123 454,541
Capital Purpose Income 56,321 22,591
Total Revenue 486,444 477,132

Expenses
Employee Benefits 183,401 208,025
Maintenance Contract and IT Support 211,413 220,493
Other Expenses from Continuing Operations - -
Finance Costs 1,694 2,352
Depreciation 45,151 42,537
Total Expenses 441,660 473,407
Net Result 44,784 3,725

Note 8.9:  Economic dependency

Australia

Hesse Rural Health’s interest in controlled operations are detailed below. The amounts are included in the consolidated financial statements under their respective categories:

There are no known contingent liabilities or capital commitments held by controlled operations at balance date.

The Health Service interest in revenues and expenses resulting from joint arrangements is detailed below, based on unaudited figures:

The Health Service interest in assets employed in the above joint arrangement is detailed below. The amounts are included in the 
financial statements under their respective asset categories:

Hesse Rural Health is dependent on the Department of Health and Human Services for the majority of its revenue used to operate the entity. At the date of this report, the Board of 
Directors has no reason to believe the Department will not continue to support Hesse Rural Health.
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Note 8.10:   Equity

Contributed capital

Specific restricted purpose reserves

Contributions by owners (that is, contributed capital and its repayment) are treated as equity transactions and, therefore, do not form part of the income and expenses of the health service. 

A specific restricted purpose reserve is established where Hesse Rural Health has possession or title to the funds but has no discretion to amend or vary the restriction and/or condition 
underlying the funds received.

Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to or contributions by owners. Transfers of net liabilities arising from administrative 
restructurings are treated as distributions to owners. 

Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions or that have been designated as contributed capital are also treated as contributed capital.
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Acute Care
Community Care
• Breakfast Club
• Farm Safety Program
• Pre-School Health
• Personal Development
• Women’s Health
• Walking Groups
• Yoga
Children’s Services
• Facilitated Play Group
• Occasional Care
Dementia Care
Dietetics

Diabetes Education
District Nursing
• Hospital in the Home
• Palliative Care
• Post Acute Care
• Domicillary Midwifery
Health Promotion
Home Care Packages
Home Care Services
Occupational Therapy
Physiotherapy
• Strength and Balance 

Classes
Podiatry (external providers)

Palliative Care
Rokewood Men’s Shed
Residential Aged Care 
Services
Respite
Social Support Groups 
including:
• Bus to the Hub
• Men’s Group
• Nester’s Group
Urgent Care
Volunteering

To access Hesse’s broad range of

services contact Administration:

Phone:    (03) 5267 1200

Mail:    8 Gosney Street

   Winchelsea VIC 3241

E-mail:    reception@hesse.vic.gov.au

Website: www.hesseruralhealth.org.au

Our Services Contact Us

WHO ARE WE?
Hesse Rural Health Service (Hesse) is a public hospital operating under the Health Services Act 1988 and 
relevant amendments, and is governed by a Board of Directors appointed by the Governor in Council by 
the recommendation of the Victorian State Minister for Health.

As an innovative rural health service, Hesse provides acute, aged and community based services across 
parts of the municipalities of Colac Otway, Golden Plains and the Surf Coast. Hesse partners with the 
Winchelsea Hostel and Nursing Home Society Inc., a not-for-profit entity and Commonwealth Residential 
Aged Care Service (RACS) provider, whose charter it is to plan, provide and develop appropriate services 
for the local community.

Our Annual Report is internally produced and designed, and reflects real stories provided by our staff, 
consumers and their families. The Report aims to inform Government, interested stakeholders and members 
of the public about the range and quality of our services and Hesse Rural Health’s financial performance 
over the year.

Hesse Rural Health acknowledges Victoria’s Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities and their rich 
culture. We pay respects to the Ancestors, Elders and Communities of the Kulin Nation and Eastern Maar 
Nation, the custodians of the land on which we deliver our health care services. We seek to ensure the 
facilities, environment and services we manage are welcoming and inclusive for all people.

H
C

Hospital

LEGEND

Community Health Services

Residen�al Aged Care

INCLUSIVNESS 
Welcoming everyone

INTEGRITY 
Accountable, 

transparent practice

EXCELLENCE 
Committed to being the 

best we can

CREATIVITY 
Leading into the future

PERSON 
CENTREDNESS 

Finding what’s important 
to the individual

VISION 
Caring for Rural Communities

MISSION 
Hesse is dedicated to 

providing and facilitating 
access to best practice health, 

aged and community based 
services that strive for rural 

wellbeing.

VALUES



 
Annual Report 

2020-21




